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SHORTER NOTICE IS HEREBY GTVEN THAT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THEMEMBERS OF'RIKHAV SECURITIES LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON 2 DAY OF SEPTEMBER,2024 AT 11.00 A.M. AT THE REGISTERED OF',FTCE OF THE COMPANY srruATED ,qr Bylilf;$\Tts]'.N^o' l^ol_*-r 
o?l g:^ g g yyEtc4! ! uirr rnc, A SHA NA G AR pA RK RoAD,

ARASHTRA,INDIA

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1' To receive and adopt the Audited Financial Statements and profit and Loss Account of the
lompany for the year ended on March 31,2024 along with the Reports of the Auditors andthe Board thereon and in this regard pass the foltowin! resolution ai an ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial statements (including the consolidated financial
statements) of the Company for the financial year ended March gt,zoz+and the Reports of theBoard of Directors and Auditors thereory along.with all annexures as laid before this meeting,
be and are hereby received, considered and ad'opted.,,

2' To appoint AHSP & Co, LLP Chartered Accountants- (FRN: 100163w), as the StatutoryAuditors of the Company for a term of 5 years i.e. til conclusion of the Annual GeneralMeeting to be held for the financial year ending March g1,,2d2g 
""a 

itr tti, r.ugura pass thefollowing resolution as an Ordinary Resolution

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and, other applicableprovisions , tI any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder (including anystatutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) the consent of themembers be and_ is hereby accorded for appointment of AHYsp & c;, LLp CharteredAccountants (FRN: 100-163w),,as the Statutory ,A,uditors of the Company, *ho *"r" appointedby the Board of Directors to fill the vacancy caused due to resignation or tr,. previous auditor,M/s' Deepak C Agarwal and Associates, to hold office for a term of 5 years i.e. tiil conclusionof the Annual General Meeting to be held for the Financial year ending 31,, Mur. h,2029, withimmediate effect, on a remuneration as may be determined by the"Board of Directors onconsultation with the Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized todo all suclt acts, deeds, matter at d thigs as may be necessar y , proper,expedient, or incidentalfor giving effect to this resolution ind to filq ,ru."rrury e-r&-s with the Registrar ofCompanies(ROC)."

3. To re-appoint Mr. Rajendra Navalchand Shah (DIN: 0124g226)
rotation and being erigible, offers himseu for re-appointment
f ollowing resolu tion as an Ordinaory. R6olufi on:

as Director. who retires by
regard pass the
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"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 1.52 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, if any (including any statutory
modifications or re-enactment thereof) and the Articles of Association o] the Company,
Mr. Rajendra NavaiChand Shah (DIN: 08064436) who retires by rotation and being eligibll,
be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, iiable to retire by rotati6n."

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution
as Ordinary Resolution:

SRESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152, 161 and all
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,2014 ("Rules") and other applicable rules
made pursuant to the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force) and any other law for the time being in force, if applicable, Mrs. Bharati
Hitesh Lakhani (DIN: 01077839), who was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Director
via circular board resolution dated 06th July,2024 by the Board of Directors of the Company
under Section 161 of the Companies Act,2013 and whose term,expires at the ensuing Rnnuat
General Meeting of the Company and who has submitted a declaration that she is not
disqualified to become a Director as prescribed under Section 152 of the Act, be and is hereby
appointed as aNon-Executive Director of the Company with immediate effect."

"RESOLVBD FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company be and is hereby severally
authorized to do all such acts, matters, deeds and things necessary or desirable in connection
with or incidental to giving effect to the above resolution, including but not limited to filing of
necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies and to comply with all other requirementi in
this regard."

5. To adopt new sets of articles of association:

To considet and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution
as Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT puryant to the provisions of the Section U aniother applicable provisions of
the companies Act, 2073, if any, read with rules made thereunder, (incrudiuleuompanlesAcr, zulJ,rrany,readwlthrulesmadethereunder,(includinganystatutorymodification
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and any other provisions as amended from time to
time, subject to such approvals and permissions from appropriate aJthorities and subject to the approval
of the members of the company at general meeting by way of passing special resolution, the new iets of
Articles of Association be and are hereby approved, and adopted in substitution to the exclusion
of the existing Articles of Associationrof thddompany',
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*RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the_company and / or the companySecretary of the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, OeeOs, ,utt.., and things asmay be considered necessary, proper or desirable for the pu.por. orgiving effect to this resolution.,,

ffiT,',tfff' 
and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resotution as a Special

withtheBRlM'tn.o,ier,,r,.u""r-u,lo'r,,ed#;Hffi'Iffi:'ffii'#Tdrm:if.'*,,:::;

Registered Office: 922 - A,9 Floor, p.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai
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"RESOLVED THAT, subject to approval of the shareholders of the company in a generar meeting andpursuant to the provisions of Sectioni 23, 26:2!,32 and,ozrijr.land all other applicable provisions of thecompanies Act'2013,and the rules and regulations raoe tr,.r.under (including any statutory modificationsor re-enactment thereof, for the time being inforce), including the iompanir; ip;orp..tus and Allotmentof Securities) Rules, 207.4, as amended, iirr co.npunl.; ish;t capital and D;be;turet Rures, 2014, asamended (the "companies Act"), and in accordance witi and subject to the provisions of the Securitiescontracts (Regulation) Act, 19i6, and, the Securiti.r ConLu"ts (Regulation; nut.r, 1957 (,,scRR,,),securities contracts 
-(Regulation) 

(Stock Exchanges und--Clruring corporations) Regulations, 20l g("sEcc Regulations")' each as aminded, the secririties and Exchange Board oir"oiu (Issue of capitaland Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,20lS, as amended (the-.,sEBr ICDR Regulations,,), theSecurities and ExchingeP-"gq of india lrirting ciorigution; uno oir.torure Requirements) Regurarions,2015' as amended ("sEBr.Listing negutatioi's1, tfr.-rffin Exchange Management Act, 1999, asamended' and the rules and regulaiions-made theieund.r, a, imended,.including ihe Foreign ExchangeManagement (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2079, anduny oirr.. applicable rules, regulations, guidelines,clarifications, circulars and notifications issued'uv trr."couernment of India (,,GoI,,), incruding theDepartment for Promotion of 
-Industry andlnternairtuo., irr. Securities and Exchange Board of India("SEBI")' Reserve Bank of India 1"RBI"; and any otrr". ufpircibl. ru*r, rules and regurations, in India oroutside India (including any amendmeni thereto o, ,.-*u.trent thereof for the iime being in force)(collectively' the "Applicalrle Laws"), and in accordance *ith tt. provisions of the Memorandum ofAssociation and the Articles of Association of trre company and the uniforrn rirti"g agreements to beentered into between the company and the respectiu. rtoJt exchanges where ile nquity Shares areproposed to be listed (the "stock Exchange"), and subjeciio uny approvals, consents, permissions andsanctions as may be required from the Got irt. negisirar of companies, Mumbai at Maharashtra("RoC")' the SEBI, RBI, the Department for Promotioi oflndustry and Internal Trade (,,DpIIT,,), Ministryof commerce and Industry.anoitl other appropriate statutory auttrorities and departments (collectively, the"Regulatory Authoritiesl') qo subject to such gou.-r.ntul and reguratory conditions and modificationsas may be prescribed, stipulated oi imposed b-y any 

"iirr.r'*rtile granting such approvars, waivers,consents' permissions and sanctions and which rnay b; ugr..J to by the ioard #nir..to^ of the company(hereinafter referred to as the "Board" which term shalT inri;;. a duly authorized committee thereof forthe time being exercising the powers conferred by the B;;; including th* ;;;;; conf.ened by thisresolution)' theconsent and approval ofthe Board te and is hereby u..oid.d to create, issue, offer, allotand/or transfer of its equity shaies of face value of <su-.a.iiir,l^,,rquity Shares,') up ro an aggregate of< 100'00 crore (Rupees one Hundred crore^only) by way oiu-nern issue of Equity shares (the,,Freshrssue") and an offer for sale of up to 55,00,000 Equity sriur.r-ty certain existing shareholders (,,Sellingshareholders") ("offer 
fol,saf'; and together with the r..ri,l*u., the ,,offer,,), for cash either at par orpremium (with an option to the compunylo retain anover-subscription to ttre extent or r% of the net offeror such other extent as may be permitted under the Appli;i;;;ws, for the purpose of rounding off to thenearest integer to make allotment while finalizirgld'b*iloruiotr.nt in consultation with the designated

*l;-;:'J3?*^?'l:i.fl': t",.b,'f.j'Tj:eoluv ii'. c"'p'"i unj t'. seuing Sharercrs. in consurrarion
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accordance with Applicable Laws, at such premium or discount per Equity Share as permitted underApplicable Laws and as may be fixed and deiermined bl th. corpuny in consurtation with the BRLM inaccordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations (the "offer p.i.*;), to any categoryof person or persons whoare eligible investors as permitted uider Applicable Laws, who may or may not be the sharehorcrer(s) of thecompany as the Board may decide in consuitation with trr. gRLIvI including un.rro,. inu.stors and qublified' institutional buyers' if any, as defined underRegulations-f ffiand 2(1)(ss) respecrivery of the SEBI ICDRRegulations, foreign / resident investors wheti'er th.y ;; ;;; or more of the'members of the company,eligible employees (through a reservation or otherwise), hindu undivideJ ru,niii.r, foreign portfolioinvestors as defined undei the Securiiio Tq rxctange'noard 
.of India (F-oreign portfolio Investors)Regulations'2019' as amended, venture capitalfunds, uit.-uiiu. investment fundi, non-resident Indians,state industrial development corporations, insuran.t;;;;;ils, provident funds, pension funds, NationalInvestment Fund, insurance fund's set up by ?rmy, naw,oi air force of the union of India, insurance fundsset up and managed by the Department 

-of 
Posis, rtioir, trmir/societies registered under the societiesRegistration Act' 1860, as amended, developm.nt nnun"iuiinstitutions, systemicaily important non-banking financial companies, Indian mutual |'dr, r"Jir" pJric, bodies corporate, companies (private orpublic) or other entities (wtrether incorporated or not), uutrro.iii.r, and to such other persons including highnet worth individuals, retail individualbidders 
"r "rh;;;;i;;;;i, one or more combinations thereof and/orany other category of investors as may be permitted to invest under Applicable Laws by way of the offerin consultation with the BRLM and/ir underwriterr, unoro. oiher advisors or such p..ron, appointed forthe offer and on such terms and conditions as may b^e'finaliseJfytn. gou.,l i"'."rrrrirr,o" with the BRLMthrough an offer document, prospectus and/or un trroinl *.*Jiunou-, as required, including the decisionto determine the category or categories of investot, to"*hor ilre allotment/transfer shall be made to theexclusion of all other categories oi investors and in such manner.as theBoard may in its discretion" deemfit' including in consultation with BRLM, underwriters arolor oihe. advisors as may be appointed for theoffer on such terms as may.be de.elned appr_opriate by the gourJu, permissible under Appticable Law, andthat the Board in consultation with trt. iiirrM may'finalise uti,nutt.r, incidentar therero as it may in itsabsolute discretion think fit and proper in the best int.r.riorflr. corpuny, *i;h;r; ;;quiring any furtherapproval of the members, and that utt ot any of the powers oi ttr. company devolved pursuant to thisresolution may be exercised by the Board.,,

"REsoLvED FURTHE.llHlTlhe Equiry Shares Issued pursuant ro rhe offer shau be listed at SMEPlatform of BSE Limited (BSE SME).,, 
'!'

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT such of these shares / securities as are not subscribed may be disposedof by the Board in its absolute discretion in such manner, u, ih. nou.o may deem fitu;; as permissible by
lly -o that the Board be and is hereby authorized to o.i.gut. uil o," uny of the powers herein conferred to

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purposes of giving effect to these resolutions, the Board herebyauthorise any of the Executive Director ofthe a^":rry {?pp"i", R_ook Running Lead Manager to theoffer, Registrar to the offer, underwriter to the offer, dil#i; the offer, Market Maker, Share EscrowAgent' Syndicate Mem.ber to the offer, Depository purti.ipunicustodians, Legal Advisor to the offer andsuch other intermediaries as may ue oeemeo necessary," ..-y 
""ysettre 

any question arising out of or inrelation to the proposed offer, enter into stand-by-anung.r.n, *ith Brokers/Bankers/Merchant Bankersfor the whole or the part of the offer unJ on ,uih t.rri and conditions within the broad framework ofparameters as prescribed by the concerned Authorities uno utroio do all acts, o..ir, ,uuers and things ofwhatever nature and to give such directiops.ar arv f. ;i;;J"..essary or desirab'zz+s-
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*RESOLVED FURTHER THAT fo| 1: purpose of giving effect to any transfer of Equiry shares, theBoard or any committee thereof be and is nf.eby authoiized to oetermineirrr r..r, of the offer includingthe class of investors to whom the securitie, ur. to be allotted, offer price,-inrtuoing discount(s) if anypermitted under applicable law, listing on one or more stock exchang., in tndiu a, the Board in its absolutediscretion deems fit and do all iuch aJts, deeds, matters and things a'nd execute such deeds, documents andagreements' as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem n...rrury, proper or desirable, and to settle or give' instructions or directions for settling any questions, difficultiei oi doubts that may arise in regard to theoffering' offer' allotment and utilizat]on of the offerp.o...ir, if applicable and such other activiiies as maybe necessary in relation to the offer, as it may, in iil auslrute disiretion, deem fit and proper in the bestinterest of the comp any andthe offer, and thai uil o. unj oithe powers orttre Company devolved pursuanrto this resolution may be exercised bv.jl. Board or uriy Jrty constituted con'ritr.. of the Board and toaccept and to give effect to such modificationt, .tt*g.f-variations, alterations, deletions, additions asregards the terms and conditions, as it may, in its absoluil discretion, deem fit and proper in the best interestof the Company."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purp.ose of giving effect to the above resolutions, the Board beand is hereby authorized (without being requir.d to-r..f uny'rurttrer consent or approval of the members ofthe company or otherwise) to mat e*sucir. r.oo{.aiion1i in the aforesaid ,.JJorution as it may in itsdiscretion consider n:clssary, expedient or desirable in ttre interest of the company including change in theprice/ amountl size of the Issue eic., u, may be considered necessary and/or expedient to settle any questionor difficulty that may arise in connection iherewith in the manner ii may .onridr, fit and appropriate.,,

"RESOLVED F',URTHER THAT th_e Board may, in the offer ma{p in furtherance to the aforesaidresolution' make reservation out of the Issue,to ru.tt rui.goty fi.rl of persons as permitted under the SEBIICDR Regulations, including but not limited to permanei;;ltpl;i;;J;},il#;any, up ro a maximumlimit as permitted in terms oittte spet (ICDR) n.gututionr.,:

*RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Equity Shares allotted anilortransferred pursuant to the offer asaforesaid shall be listed on one or more recognised stock exchanges in India.,,

'.RESOLVED FITRTHER THAT the Equity shares allotted andlortransferred pursuant to the offer asaforesaid shall be subject to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the iorpuny and shall rankpari-passu with the existing Equity Shares in all respects, inctuoing rights in respect of dividend.,,

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT oversubscription to'the extent of 10%of the offer shall be retained forthe purpose of rounding off while finalizingthe basis orutioin'.nt in relation to the offer.,,

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all monies received out of the offer shall be transfened to a SeparateBank Account referred to in Section 40(3).of th. C";p;;iis Act, 2013; andif the application moniesreceived pursuant to the offer are not refunded within il;;ir., as specified by SEBI and in accordance' with applicable law, the company shall pay interest on failure thereof; as per applicable law,,,

;H::*Y3,flu"iffi-:"Ifi# Xl*.".:':.:i:p,l::"1:i'?{the.sEBr rcDR Regurations, such Equity
*1xT:,T#'^i":,1?:y:t":* 9a+',;.v u. oi'po'.J;'r;?.?#1x,ilf;13i'1R ;::',::ll
E#x:::"1"::,:::1i::,_:lTpl4#rJffi;;d.i'H,",'fi ";:#HJJTffi $,'i"'l;3
$:f*E*::ly::9,::y:*-:lot":yl,n.*,i,i*,e.*,7;il;;#il"#;,JftTfi::l,X?1*f,',ll"jit:#;il:ibH,:,jDo*o^-. n- ^+L^---i - - ,r -

itutions /
Persons or otherwise.,' 9 uch Other
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(RESOLVED 

FURTHER TrrAT in connection.with any of the foregoing resorutions, the members ofthe Board and such other persons as may be authorized uy tle noard, on-behitf of the company, be and arehereby severally authorized to execute and deliver *v .io rl 
"ther 

documents, papers or instruments andto do or cause to be done any and all acts or things u, ruy u. n...rru,y, appropriate or aclvisable in orderto carry out the purposes and intent of the foregolng r.roiuti""r ror the Issue; and any such documents soexecuted and delivered or acts and things done or iaused to u. oon. st;Ift ."".i;rt". evicrence bfrhe' authority of the company in so doing uid uny document so executed and delivered or acts and things doneor caused to be done prior to the daie here.oi are tterery ,atiri.o, .o'n;;;;-"pp.oved as rhe acts anddeeds of the Company, as the case may be.,,

*RESoLVED FURTHER.THAT any Director(s) of the company be and is hereby authorized ro file
;:i:'r',:'7.i,f'ril|'tfl:,T-ilfi1::,ffT;anies, Mumuui, u"Jio oo hr such u.,,, 0.,0, and things as may

7.

lilffit*:?,li,kithought 
fit, to pass, with or without modifications, rhe following resolution as a

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 17g.(3)read with 180( r)(a) and orher applicabte provisions,if any' of the companies Act, 2013 andthe rules-made there unier (including any amendment theretoor re-enactment thereof) and in terms of Articles or arro.iuiiol 
9! tne company, and subje* to theapproval ofthe members, consent of the Board of Directors b;;;; is hereby u.iorj.olo create charges,hypothecations, mortgages/equitable mortgages, on movable and,lor immovable properties and/ orwhole or any part of the undertaking(s) ;1dr. 9"rp;";,-;r!sent and/or future, to take over themanagement of the business and conCern of the corpunv'uii 
9, selv dispose of the properties socharged' mortgaged or hypothecated in certain events, i" a""". 

"flenders, 
ur"tr, n*".ial institutions,trustees of the holders of debentures/bonds and/or oiher instruments, hire purchase/lease companies,body corporate or any other person/ on such terms and .""oiii""r as the Board may deem fit, towardssecurify for borrowings-of the company from time to tit*, pt""ioed that trr. totuilr*nt at any pointof time shall not exceed t 500.00 crores (Rupees Five Hundred crores onry),,.

*RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director(s) of the company be and are hereby a severalyauthorized' to do all acts, deeds, mafters, and things as deem n..*rru.y, proper and desirable and tosign and execute all nece.ssary documents, applicatlon and returns for the purpose of giving effect tothe aforesaid resolution alongwith filing of necessary e-forms with the Registrar of companies.,,

Registered Office: 922- A,9 Floor, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai400 001, Maharashtra, India.
Corporate Office: B - Wing, Office No. 501 & 502, 02 Commercial Building, Asha Nagar Park Road,l4ulund West, Mumbai - 400 080,
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To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
Special Resolution:

*RBSOLVED THAT prrsuant.to $ecti6n'l7g(3) read with t8_0(t)(c) and any other appliprovisions, if anv, of the companies ict, zot: ano ih;;i.r';;. there under, (inciuding any r,

modifications, the following resolution as a

ffirys
L-)'
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amendment thereto or reenactment thereof), and subject to the approval of the members, consent of the
Board of Directors be and is hereby accorded to bonow such sums of money from time to time, with
or without security, on such terms and conditions as it may consider fit notwithstanding that the amount
to be borrowed together with amount already borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans
obtained from the Company's bankers in the ordinary course of business) exceeds the aggregate of paid-
up capital and free reseryes and securities premium provided that the total amount that may be bonowed

' by the Board and outstanding at any point of time shall not exceed < 500.00 Crores (Rupees Five
Hundred Crores Only)".

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Director(s) of the Company be and are hereby
severally authorized, to do all acts, deeds, matters, and things as deem necessary, proper and desirable
and to sign and execute all necessary documents, application and returns for the purpose ofgiving effect
to the aforesaid resolution alons with filine of necessary e-forms with the Reeistrar of Comoanies."

9. To authorize to make loan(s) and give suarantee(s). nrovide securitv(ies) or make investments in
excess of the prescribed limit as mentioned under section 186 of companies act.2013

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

6'RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 186 and any other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act,2013 read with relevant rules made thereunder, inclqjing any statutory modifications
and re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, subject to the Articles of Association of the
Company and subject to other approvals, consents, sanctions and permissions as may be necessary, the
consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Director (herein referred to as "the
Board" which term shall be deemed to include any committee of the Board) for making investment in
excess of limits specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 from time to time in
acquisition of securities of any Body corporate or for giving loans, guarantee or providing securities to
any Body corporate or other person/entity whether in India or outside India, as may be considered
appropriate for an amount not exceeding { 500 crores (Rupees Five Hundred Crores), notwithstanding
that such investment and acquisition together with existing investments of the Company in all other
bodies corporate, loans and guarantees given and securities provided that be in excess of the limits
prescribed under Section 186(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 i.e., the limits available to the Company
is sixty per cent of its paid up share capital, free reserves and securities premium account or one hundred
per cent of its free reseryes and securities premium account, whichever is more".

(RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby a severally
authorized to negotiate and settle the terms and conditions of the investments / loans I guarantees /
securities'which may be made by the Company from time to time,,by the Company, finalize the
agreements/contracts and documents in this regard and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as

may be necessary to give effect to this resolution".

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Director(s) of the Company be and are hereby a
severally authorized, to do all acts, deeds, matters, and things as deem necessary, proper and desirable
and to sign and execute all necessary documents, application and returns for the purpose of giving effect
to the aforesaid resolution along with filingof necessary e-forms with the panies."

Registered Office: 922 - A,9 Floor, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai 400 001 , J\4aharashtra, India.

Corporate Office-: B - Wing, Office No. 501 & 502, 02 Commercial Building, Asha Nagar Park RoadiMulund West, Mumbai - 400 080,
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To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Section 13, 61, 64 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modiflcation
or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and in accordance wit-h the provisions of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, approval of Members ofihe Company, be
and is hereby accorded for subdivision of the nominal value of equity shares of the Company irom the
existing nominal value of Rs. l0/- each to the nominal value of Rs. 

'S!--eachand 
consequentiy tire existing

Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company be and is hereby altered accordingly.,,

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the Sub-Division of the equity shares of the Company,
existing nominal value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) of all the issued, subsiribed and paid-up equit
shares of the Company shall stand sub-divided into equity shares of nominal value of Rs. 5/-'(nupee
Five only) each fully paid and shall rank pari passu.in ali respects with the exisring fulty paid equity
shares of the Company".

*RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the sub-division of Equity Shares of the Company from
Face Value Rs. 10/- each(Rupees Ten only) to Face Value of Rs. 5/- eaih (Rup.. Five only), the existing
Authorized and Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the company as on record date shall stand sub-divided
as given below:

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, pursuant to the sub-division of Equity Shares with a Face Value of
\t ll- each (Rupees Five) as described above, the existing Equity Shares held in dematerialized form
shall be adjusted through a corporate action upon receiving approval from the members. The Board is
hereby authorized to implemenf the sub-division by increasingthe number of equity shares held by each
member accordingly,"

.6RESOLVED FIIRTHER THAT, company's share register shall be updated to reflect the subdivision,
and appropriate adjustments shall be made accordingly,t.

*RESOLVED FURTHBR THAT the Boar{of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized

:",j:*"1t^:::1 :1:l:T-tul.9. requiredto obtain approvals in retaiion to above, cancer the existing
physical share certificates; settle any question or difficul;y rhatmay arise with regard to the sub-division
of the shares as aforesaid or for any matters connected h6iewith or inci and do all such

Registered Office: 922- A,9 Floor, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street. Fort. Mumbai tra, India.
Corporate Office: B - Wing, Office No. 501 & 502, 02 Commercial Building, Asha Nagar paNt

Maharashtra, lndia 'Tel.: 022-69078300 . Email: investor@rikhav.in/info@rikhav.net . Web: www.ri
West, Mumbai - 400 080,

net . GSTIN: 27AADCR3067Q1ZS

Particulars, sion of Equ ff Shares Post Sub-division of Equitv Shares

;

Face 
.

,Value in r

Total Equify
Share cafiiat
iN INR

of ,tr'ace

Value in
INR

Total Equity
Share capital
in INR

Authorized
Equity share
capital

1095,00,000 10 19,50,00,000 3,90,00,000 3 19050,00,000

Issued,
subscribed
and paid-up
Equity Share
capital

1,49,82,000 10 14,98,20,000 2099,64,000 f, 14,99,20,000
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further acts, deeds or things as may be required to give effect to the sub-division of Equity Shares of theCompany".

l1

' To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as ordinary Resolution:

"RESoLVED THAT pursuantlo the provisions of sections 13, 61,64 and other applicable provisionsof the companies Act, 2013 andRules made thereunder fi"rrrairg any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and upon suu-oivision 
"f 

Eq"li ih;;;r, consent of theMembers of the Company be and is hereby accorded to alter and substitute the existing Clause V ofMemorandum of Associations of the company with the following new clause v:
"The Authorised share^Capital of the company is Rs.22,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty-Two ctrore,s only)divided into 3,90,00,000 (One Crore Uiniry_five Lakhs) nqii4, Shares of t5/_ each and 25,00,000(Twenty-Five Lakhs) Preferen.ce shares o1 it ot- each wi'th p;;;, tu increase, recluce alter modifu theshare capital of the company.

'.RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the company be and are hereby authorizeclto do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, proper or desirable for thepurpose of giving effect to this resolution.i

12-

ffi"ilrttffi, 
and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as a special

RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of section 197, 1.98, und all other applicable provisions,if any' of the companies Act, 2013 ("Th9 A9f) r"d;h"Applicable Rules (inciuding any staturorymodification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time u.ing in ror.e), , consent of Members of the companybe and are hereby accorded to fix the remuneratiol to.!e;ritil ro Rs. 6,00,0001- fnupees Six Lakh only)per annum and other.expenses.incuned by Mr' Monil Shah, Executive Director for and on behalf of theCompany including his travelling, boardlng, lodging, .o*runi.ution expenses shall be reimbursed atactuals and shall not form part of his remuneration on such terms and condition from time to time withinSchedule v of companies Act, 2013 andany other amendments thereto or enactment thereof.
*RESOLVED FURTHBR THAT. in the event of inadequacy of profits in any financial year, the above-mentioned remuneration paid to him, as minimum ,.run.ruiion, subject to prescribed provisions under

'section 197 readwith schedule v of the Act and rules made thereunder and any other applicable provisionsof the Act or any other statutory modifications or enactment thereunder.,,

;Hff,1yf;"".IyTi::),T3ff:rj"::lt,?o.:.1'and or company Secretary of the company
*.::l, s' *::'.0"t :^' ::T'I-til ": 

Ly!,,, to d; ; r ...' 
. 4;; '"i#:;1 ffi 'JX ;l# H :ffi :l

H:ff:?f:3:iT.9,::tl?9f -Tg 
to sign and execute all necessary documents, ulpii.ation and returns

f:*:"l3*:::g:y:g,,rrectto the aroiesaid;;j;;j;; il;il;?,i,ii_'liilt?;JJgil:ffi:ffiliiil;
Registrar of Companies."

Registered Office: 922 - A,9 Floor, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai 400 001, trrtutiffinOir.' r , rvrsr'I,.t q9t ttt q, il tvtq.

i::f|.f:.,?:l,j:i?, .rylXs;gflj:?X::0l j,t,gi, 9i clllerciaj a.uirdins, Ash; N;silpa* noao, Murund west, Mumbai _400 080,
o ii riri' 

" 
.. t . iV Ju 

"i'i,-' il;; ;: # f ; ;;,"ni','; ;li; if;o"uib"i r t

6P-reEl tn$#
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NOTES:

An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 1,02 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to
the Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General trteeUng (AGM, or ,Meeting,)
is annexed hereto.
Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the
Meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified true copy of the Board
Resolution authorising their representative to attend and vote on their behau at the
Meeting.

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the General Meeting may appoint a proxy who
need not be a Member to attend and vote on his/her behalf.
Proxies to be effective must be deposited at the Registered office of the Company not lesstlln fgrty-eight hours before the time fixed for hotding the Meeting.
All relevant documents (copies thereof) referred to in-the accompanying Notice and the
Statement including Register of Directors and Key Manageriai personnel and their
shareholding (as may be appiicable) under Section 170 and, Register of Contracts or
Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained under Section 1g9 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and their shareholding, shall remain open for inspection by the
Members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days during business
hours i.e. 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. up to the date of the meeting.
All the other relevant documents in relation to the items of the Agenda are made available
for inspection on demand made by members.
The Voting at the meeting shall be conducted by show of hands unless a poll in
accordance with section 109 of the Companies Act,201i is demanded by any member.
None of the Directors of the Company except Mr Hitesh Himatlal Lakhani, Key
Managerial Personnel or their relatives is concerned or interested in resolution No. 4 set
out in the Notice.
None of the Directors of the Company except Mr Rajendra N Shah, Key Managerial
Personnel or their relatives is concemed or interested in resolution No. 12 set out in the
Notice.
A Route-Map along with Prominent Landmark for easy location to reach the venue ofAnnual General Meeting is annexed with the notice of Arurual General Meeting.

Registered office: 922'A,9 Floor, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai 400 001, Maharashtra, India.
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For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 31"t ,2024

@
' iit"rf, Himatlal Lakhani

Managing Director
(DIN:01457990'l

Registered Office: g22 - A,9 floor, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai400 001:Maharashlra, India.
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Item No 04:

Mrs Bharati Hiteshul'akhani was appointed as an Additional Director of the company via Board circularresolution dated 06th July 2024,with immediate_effect, suulecito approval of Members. In terms of section161(1) of the companies Act 2013, she holds office ofAdditionat oiiector up to ttre oate of ensuring annuuiGeneral Meeting of the company and is eligible rot uppoinirn*n, u, Dir..tor. The company has received anotice in writing from a Member in terms Jr section'ioof iiortrre act, p.oposi;;;., candidarure for rheoffice of Director' she has also confirmed !ul.:!. ir "* iiJq"alified from being appointed as Direcror, interms of the provisions of Section 164(1), 164(2) of the Act uno ttur given her consent to act as a Directorof the Company.

None of the Directors or other key Managerial Personnel of the company except Mr Hitesh HimatlalLakhani, in any way concerned or interestei in the ,uio ,.roru,ion.

The board recommends passing of the ordinary resolution as contained in item no 04 of the notice.

Item No 05:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 of the companies Act, 2013, read with the companies(Incorporation) Rules, 2014, any amendment in the Articl.r or at*i"a"i 
"r 

i"hpany requires consentof the Members at a General Meeting by means of a Speciar Resolution,

Accordingly, the Resolution at item no. 05 seeks your consent to the proposed changes by way of a SpecialResolution, as stated in the Shorter Notice convening the meeting.

None of the Directors or other key managerial personnel of the company are concerned or interested in thesaid resolution

The Board of Directors recommends passing of the special resolution as contained in item No, 05 of thenotice.

Item No 06 :

The company intends to list its equity shares. (Equity.shares) on BSE Limited (BSE sME) to enableshareholders to have a formal markei place for dearii,g i"itrtirtr-6*puny,, .quif ,t *.s. For this purpose,it is intended to undertake an initial public 
9nej1e.o"ft]r. Eq;t lfares of the company by way of Fresh

- 
Issuance of Equity Shares along withoftr.Pr rytiry ttt. siirng shareholders of Equity shares, out of theauthorized share capital of the Company (osFresh oifero'and ,ooffer for sale,,). The company intends toundertake the offer and Iist the Equity Sni.tt at an opportune time in consultation wittr the Book RunningLead Manager and other advisors in relation to the oifer and subject to applicable regulatory approvals, tothe extent necessary.

In view of the above and in terms of Section23,26,28,32 and 62(1)(c),and other applicable provisions of
l|! :::f::::"i::."?,"t^ir,f!l!: rutes 1fg 6ei;,ider;.u.r, * ur.nded, the approvar oirhe$embers ofthe company is required through u rp..iuirE#il;;. "" 

so\'rt dr ixllrslrueo' me approv}Hgbers of

*q'$:tg19tff:l:3i *,rJf'".j 
pJ. rowers, Datat s_treet, Fort, Mumbai 400 001, ,,,r.frriffi, ,no,r.corporate orrice: B - wins, orrice No. scjt a soz, 02 commerciar B;rd;'s, ffi: iilff;#,'ilJr'; ''fi,|1ilTil:1,:Tllbai_ 

400 080,Maharashtra, India'Tel':022-69078300'Email: investor@rikhuu.inlintogtir,nav.net. vileuiwww.rir,hav.net. GSTIN:27AADcR3067e1zs
GlN:U99999MH1995PLc086635.DEPos|ToRYPART|c|PANTlD:12051500.DPsEB1p66.xffi

NsE MEMBERSHTP No' 12804 / BSE: CLEARING No. eiz+ . seelREG. No. lNZ0001s773z



R IKHAV S EC U R ITIES LTD Member: BSE o NSEo ICEXo DP : CDSL

- 

GrowEh, Fleturns and Security

The Company proposes to offer and allot equity shares of the Company of face value of { 5/- (the ..Equity
shares") each up to an aggregate of { 100.00_crore (Rupees one Hundred crore only), by way of a freshissue of Equity Shares (the"Fresh rssue") and an offir for sale of up to 50,00,000 Equity Shares by certainexisting shareholders ("Selling Shareholders") ("offer for sale" and together with the Fresh Issue, the"offer"),on such terms and atsuch price or prices and at suchtime u, nriy be considered appropriate bythe board of directors of-the Company ("Board") or a duly authorised committee thereof, in consultationrvith Book Running Lead Manager appointed for irre offer, to the various categories of permitted investorswho may or may not be the shareholoeilg ortne company ioih. initiut public offer by way of book buildingmethod under sEBI ICDRRegulations. The Equrg shares, if any, allottid vide the oifer shall in all respectsrank pari passu with the existing equity shares-ofihe Company.

The proceeds from the Fresh offer will be utilized for the purposes that shall be disclosed in the Draft RedHening Prospectus to be filed with SME in connection witir the offer. The Board has the authorify tomodiff the objects on the basis ofthe requirements of the company, subject to applicable law. The price atyht:h the Equity Shares will be allotted through the offer, as well as the price band within which biddersin the Offer will be able to put in bids for Equity Shares offered in the Offer shall be determined andfinalised by the company in aicordance with ttre spgt ICDR Regulations, on the basis of the book buildingprocess.

The company will not }a\e a1 gffer of Equity Shares to any of the promoters, or members of the promotergroup of the Company in the Offer

None of the directors.and key managerial personnel of the company and their relatives (as defined in thecompanies Act'2013) are concerned or inierested in the proporiJ"J.;ilri;;,';.or. rn. exrent of theirshareholding in the Company.

i[!;H.|t 
in control of the company or its management of its business is intended or expected pursuant to

The Board recommends this resolution for your approval as a special resolution. Accordingly, approval ofthe members of the company is sought to brr.r equity srru.rr'unc., ,., tion 23, zi,-za, 32 and 62(l)(c),and other applicable provisions of thJcompanies Act, 1013 and the rules and regulations made thereunder,each, as amended.

Item No.7& 8:

As per the provisions of Section 180(l) of the companies Act, 2013,theBoard of Directors of the companycannot, except with the consent of the company in ttre ceneral Meeting by a Speciai Resolution, borrowthe monies apart from temporary loans (loans viz., means loans repayable on demand or within six monthsfrom the date of the loan such ai short+erm, cash credit uount...nts, the discounting of bills and the issueof other short-term loans of a seasonal character, but does-not include loans raisJd for the purpose offinancial expenditure of a capital nature) from the bo*puny;, bankers in the ordinary course of business,in excess of the aggregate of the paid-up capitaland the free reserves and securities premium of company,that is to say, reserves not set apirt for any ipecific purposes. purthe. without the conslnt of the companyin the General Meeting by a Special Resolution, ttre goard of Directors shall not sell, lease or otherwise

Hi:T:l,TlT:::i"',Lrjl1*ulJ*LL:'.gJn. y;9.'tiri,.,,s ortr,e comp,"y o. *r,..e rhe companyowns more than one undertakinglg.{lher*hlf ;l substantially'the whole ;i;y;iil; ffi#ffi1J,UndertheprovisionsofSectionl80(l)(a)andSection1soriji.j"rtnecomgani.Ja.ffi$T:?:

Registered Office: 922 - A,9 Floor, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai 400 001, Mali
Corporate Office: B - Wing, Office No. 501 & 502, O2 Commercial Building, Asha Nagar Park Road, Mutund'T6f Mumbai - 400 0g0,
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made effective from August 3fr, 2024 the above powers can be exercised by the Board only with the
consent of the Members obtained by a Special Resolution.

Keeping in view of the Company's business requirements and its growth plans, it is considered appropriate
to increase the aforesaid limit of borrowings. Your consent is therefore iought, to authorize the Board to
borrow up to { 500 Crores (Rupees Five Hundred Crores only) (apart from temporary loans obtained from
the Company's bankers in the ordinary course of business) as outstanding, at any iir. u, set out in the
resolution.

The borrowing limit and to create charges, hypothecations, mortgages/equitable mortgages, on movable
and/ot immovable properties under 180(1)(a) is proposed to be enhanced to such an.ri.ni that the sum(s)
so borrowed under this resolution and remaining outstanding at any time shall not exceed in ttre aggregate
Rs. 500 Crores (Rupees Five Hundred Crores Only) in excess of and in addition to the paid-up cap[al anO
free reserves of the Company for the time being. It is, therefore, necessary for the Members to'pasi Special
Resolutions under Section 180(1)(a) and Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act,2073.

The members are requested to approve item No. 7 & 8by way of passing a Special Resolution.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are deemed to be
interested or concemed in the said Resolutions, except to the extent of their shareholding in the Company.

Item No.9: '

The Board of Directors intends to provide loan, investment, guarantee and security to other person(s) andlor
Body Corporate(s) in view of company's strategic plans.

Pursuantto the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act,2013, the approval of the members is
required by way of Special Resolution, if the limit efceeds 60% ofthe aggregate of the paid-up share
capital, free reserves-and securities premium and/or up to 100% of the u!lr"f*" of free reserves and
securities premium of the Company, whichever is more.

Therefore, Special Resolution set out at the aforesaid accompanying notice is being recommended by the
Board for the approval of members

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are deemed to be
interested or concerned in the said Resolutions, except to the extint of their shareholding in the Company.

Item No 10 & 11:

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on July 16rh ,2024 considered and approved the proposal of
restructuring the Share Capital of the Company by sub-dividing the existing equity shares into face value
of Rs. 5/- per share in place of Rs. 10/- per share. The new equity shares to be issued and allotted upon
sub-division shall rank pari passu with the then existing equity shares of the Company in all respects,

Further Article of Association of the corypanftr{d the companies Act, 2013,
shares subject to the approval of memberi. /t
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1 3 , 14 and 6 1 of the Companies Act, 2013 approval of the Members
is required for sub-division of shares and consequent amendment to Clause V of the Memorandum of ,

Association of the Company.

Accordingly, the resolutions set out at Item No. 9 & 10 seek approval of the Members for the proposed
subdivision of face value of the Equity Shares and Item No. l0 the consequent amendments to the
existing Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company.

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that the aforesaid sub-division of the face value of Equity Shares,
is in the best interest of the Company and hence recommends passing of the resolutions set out at Item
No. 9 and Item No. 10 as Ordinary Resolutions.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives, are in
any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolutions, except to the extent of
equity shares held by them in the Company.

Iitem No 12:

The Board of Directors, in its meeting held on 3l'tAugust,2024,recommended Fixing the remuneration
of Mr. Monil Shah (DIN: 08064436), Executive Director of the Company, to be up to Rs. 6,00,000/-
(Rupees Six Lakhs only) per annum and on such terms and condition from time to time within Schedule
V of Companies Act, 2013 and any other amendments thereto or enactment thereof, subject to the
approval of the Shareholders in the General Meeting.

The Board of Directors considered it to be desirable to approve the payment of remuneration payable to
him as Executive Director.

In compliance to Section 197 of Companies Act,2013, the remuneration fixation of Mr. Monil Shah as
Executive Director is now being placed before the members for its approval.

None of the Directors except Mr Rajendra N.Shah, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
relatives are deemed to be interested or concerned in the said resolution, except to the extent of their
shareholding

The Board of Directors recommends the above resolutions to be passed as Special Resolution.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 3L't ,2024

Hitesh Himatlal Lakhani
Managing Director
(DlN:01,4s7990)

Registered Office: 922-A,9 Floor, P.J.Towers, DalalStreet, Fort, Mumbai400001, Maharashtra, India.

Corporate Office: B - Wing, Office No. 501 & 502, 02 Commercial Building, Asha Nagar Park Road, Mulund West, Mumbai - 400 080,

Maharashtra, lndia. Tel.: 022-69078300 . Email: investor@rikhav.in/info@rikhav.net. Web:www.rikhav.net'GSTIN: 27AADCR3067Q1ZS

GIN: U99999MH'1995F1C086635. DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT lD: '12051500'DPSEBIREG.NO. lN-DP-CDSL-417-2007
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Io
I'he Members,
RIKHAV SECURITIES LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting

operations of the Company together with the

ended 31"tMarch,2024.

this Annual Report on the business and

Audited Statement of Accounts for the year

A. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & RESULTS:

a. Financial Results

The Company's performance during the year- ended 3L't March 2024 as compared

to the prwious financial year, is summarized below:

Standalone

Particulars
Year ended
3't.03.2024

Year ended
31.03.2023

Amount in Rs. 000's Amount in Rs. 000's

Revenue from oPerations 10,33,076 4,85,621

Other Income 71,,454 50,044

Total Income LL,04,530 5,35,665

Total Expenses 5,89,287 2,92,643

Net Profit before tax 5,15,243 2,43,022

Tax Expenses 91,518 4'1.,L66

Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax 4,23,726 2,01,856

Consolidated

B SO1, Sth Floor, 0p Commercial Building, Asha Nagar Park Road, Near Minenva Indl. Estate, Mulund [Wl, 022 6907 9300

Particulars
Year ended
31.03.2024

Year ended
31.03.2023

Amount in Rs. 000's Amount in Rs. 000's

Revenue from oPerations 10,34,228 4,94,677

Other Income 71,767 50,175

Total lncome 11.,05,995 5,44,852

Total Expenses 5,92,431 2,99,792

Exceptional ltem 42 392

Net Profit before tax ,. . ' - 5,73,607 2,45,454

Tax Expenses 9'J",518 41.,1.66

Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax 4,22,089 1,99,597-a4,

I

Tel.:

oEB|REG.xg.lt!-9pcDst.a1Z2oo7.Email:info@rikhav.netoWeb:www.rikhav'net
NSE : MEMBERsHtp No. 1zeo4 / BSE : cLEARINc No. 3174 . sEBl REG. No. lNzooo157737
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OPERATIONS:

There was no change in nafure of the business done during the year.

CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY:

The Authorised share capital of the Company as on 31't March, 2024 is Rs.

22,00,00,000 and paid-up share capital is Rs. L4,98,20,000.

During the year under review, there has been no change in the Capital of the

Company

(NOTE: A) Share Splitting B) Increas.e in Share Capital C) Increase/ Further issue
-to be covered upon finalization)

DTVIDEND:

Your Directors have not recommended any dividend this year.

UNpelp pfVpEt{D e" fnnNSffR Of en'fOUrufS fO ntUVnSfOn
EDUACTION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF):

The Company has no amount is lying in Unpaid Dividend A/ c of the Company.

The Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of
seven years. Therefore, there were no funds which were required to be transferred to

the trvestor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF).

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

The Company has transferred surplus of Rs 42,37,26,000 (Rupees Forty-Two crore

Thirty-Seven Lakhs and Twenty-Six Thousand), to the reserves as reflected in
Balance sheet during the year under review.

g. 'REPORT ON PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES,. ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURE COMPANIES:

During the year under review, the company has only a wholly owned subsidiary
RSL IFSC Private Limited at GIFT City, Gujarat.during the year under review

The details of wholly owned supsidiary are annexed to this report as Annexure 1".

$'

B 501, Sth Floor, 02 Commercial Building, Asha Nagar Park Road, Nean Minerva Indl. Estate, Mulund (WJ, Mumbai - 80. Tel, : 022 6907 830C

b.

c.

d.

e.

t.

DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT tD: 1205150O o DPSEBT REG. NO. IN-DP-CDSL-417-2OO7. Email: info@rikhav.ner .web: www.rikhav.nel
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h. DEPOSITS

Do.i.g the year under teview, the company has not accepted any deposits covered
under Clhapter V of the Companies Act,2013.

The details of Related Party Transactiors are reported in detail in attached financial
statements and schedules thereto. Trarsactiors required to be reported under section 1gB,
are disclosed in AOC - 2 as Annexwe2to this Report.

ATION ERGY RIJ'T FOR
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The details related to this section are provided as an Annexure 3 to this Directors, Report.

IATEBSITE: T

The Company have website https://www.rikhav.net and the Annual Return
referred to in Section 92 shall be placed on the website.

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of
Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in reipect of loans, investments,
guarantee and securities. The Company has not made any loans, guarantees and
investments covered under section 186'of the Act during the year.

F1.."f, as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no material changes and commitments
which could affect the Company's financial position, have occurred. between the end
of the financial year of the Company and date of this report.

B 501, Sth Floor, 02 Commercial Building, Asha Nagar Park Road, Near Minerva Indl. Estate, Mulund iW), tvtumUai - 80. Tel. : 022 6907 8300

#*R
F\-rt
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MATTERS RELATED TO DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNET

a) BOARD OF DIRECTqRS & KEY MANAGERIAT PERSONNEL

During the year under review, w.e.f. 28/09/2023, Mr. Saarthak Ashwin Kothari was
appointed as a Non-Executive Director and Mr. Tarang Madanjit Mehta was
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company.

Ms' Nimrit Hitesh Kasturi resigned as Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f.
31'/12/2023. Ms. Vrushti Parag Shah was appointed as a Company Secretary in place
of Ms. Nimrit Kasturi w,e.f ., January 11.,2024.

Mr. Saarthak Ashwin Kothari resigned from the directorship w.e.f. 28/0g/2024.

Mr. Rajendra Navalchand Shah was appointed as an Executive Director and in the
capacity of Designed Director w.e.f. 28.09.2024

Mr. Rajendra Navalchand Shah retires by rotation ut tf,i, ensuing Annual generai
meeting and being etigible for reappointment.

The company has received the declarations from the Independent Directors
confirming that they are not disqualified to act as an Independent Directors under
section 1,49(6) of the Companies Act, 2013

As on 31"t March 2024, the Board comprises of, Mr. Hitesh Himatlal Lakhani,
Mr. Monil Rajendra Shah, Mr. Rajendra Navalchand Shah, Mr. Manish Lalitkumar
Jain and Tarang Madanjit Mehta.

b)

"Ms. Vrushti Parag Shah was resigned as Company
w.e.f. egttr |une,2024.*Mrs. Bharti Hitesh Lakhani was appointed as the
Director of the Company w.e.f. 06th [uly,2024.*Ms. Sona |ain was appointed as Company Secretary
[uly,2024,

CONSTITUTION OF COMMITTEES:

During the year under review:. .- .
9

Secretary of the Company

Additional Non- Executive

of the Company w.e.f. L6th

B 501, 5th Floor, 02 CommercialBuilding, Asha Nbgar Park Road, Near Minerva Indl. Estate, Mulund (WJ, Mumbai- 80. Tel,:02p 6907 BS00
DEPostToRYPARTlclPANT|D:12o515oo.DPSEBlREG'No.|N.DP.cDSL-4,|7.2oo7.e*
NSE : MEMBEH9I{|P NO. 12804 / BSE : CLEARING NO. 3174 . SEBI REG. NO. \NZOOO157737
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The Company has the Audit Committee and
the policy.

The composition of the Committee is as under:

the role, power, duties are detailed in

The Company has the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the role,
power/ duties are detailed in the policy.

The composition of the Committee is as under:

Th9 Company Secretary of the Company shall act as the Secretary to the Nomination
and Remuneration Comrnittee.

The provisions of the section 135 of the Companies Act, 2012 are applicable and
details of spending of csR is mentioned in Annexure 4 of this report.

a. DOARD MEETINGS:

The Board of Directors met 13 times during the financiu, ,"u, ended 31't March 2024in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 201,2 and rules made
thereunder.

c)

C.

The Company has complied with
all the Board meetings. ..r \

the applicable Secretarial Standards in respect of

B 501, Sth Floor, 02 Commercial Building, Asha Nagar Park Road, Near Minerva lndl. Estate, Mulund (W), Mumbai- 80. Tel. :022 6907 830t

Name of the Directors Designation Nature of Directorship
Manish Lalitkumar Tain Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director
Tarang Madanjit Mehta Member Non-Executive Independent Director
Monil Rajendra Shah Member Director

Name of the Director Nature of Directorshi
Tarang Madaniit Mehta Non-Execrltive & Independent Director
Manish Lalitkumar Tain Non-Executive & Independent Director

DEPOSITORY PARTICTPANT lD: 12051500 . DPSEBIREG. NO.IN-DP-CDSL.417-2OO7. Email: info@rikhav.net 'Web:www.rikhav.ne
NSE : MEMBERSHIP NO. 12804 / BSE: CLEARING NO, 3174 . SEBI REG. NO. INZOOQ'157737
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b. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Board of Directors of the Company has designed Risk Management policy andGuidelines to avoid events, situations or circumsiarrces which may lead to negativeconsequences on the Company's businesses and define a strucfured approach tomanage uncertainty and to make use of these in their decision-making periaining toall business divisions and corporate functions. Key business risks and theirmitigation are considered in the annual/strategic buiiness plans and in periodicmanagement reviews.

D.

a. STATUTORY AUDITORS:

The Members of the Company at their AGM held on 2gu, septembe r,2023had approvedthe appointrnent.o{ M/:. Deepak c Agarwal & Associates Chartered Accountants((FRN: 140967w)), Mumbai, as the statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5years i'e' till conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held for the financial
year ending 31't March,2}2g. . ' ,

The observations / qualilications / disclaimers made by the Statutory Auditors intheir report for the financial year ended 31"t March 2024 readwith the explanatorynotes therein are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for any furtherexplanation or conunents from the'Board under Section 1g4(g) of the Companies Act,
201.3.

c. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

a' Pursuant to the provisions of section 1,48 of the Companies Act, 2013 readwith the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 201.4, asamended fromtime to time, the Company is not required to maintain Cost Records under' said Rules.

There were no
Company under
201.4.

incidences of reporting of
Section M3(tZ) 2\the Act

L

frauds by Stafutory Auditors of the
read with Companies (Accounts) Rules,

B 501, Sth Floor, 02 Commercial Building, Asha Nagar Park Road, Near Minerva Indl, Estate, Mulund (Wl, Mumbai . 80. Tel. : 022 6907 8300
DEPOS|TORY PARTICIPANT lD: 12O515O0 o DPSEBI REG. NO. IN.DP-CDSL-417-2OO7. Email: info@rikhav.net .Web: www.rikhav.net
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OTHER DISCLOSURES

Other disclosures as per provisions of section 1M of the Act read with applicable rules are
fumished as under:

During the year under review, there were
pending in the name of the Company under
201.6.

no applications made or proceedings
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy CodL,

DIFFERENCE B EN ATI
AND VALUA WH AVAI

TIME
KAND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS:

During the year under review, there has been no one-time settlement of Loan takenfrom Banks and Financial Instifutions

No orders have been passed by ^y Regulator or Court or Tribunal which can have
impact on the going concem status and the Compan/s operations in future.

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 20'1.3, in relation to the audited
financial statements of the Company foi.the year ended 31"t March ,2024, the Board
of Directors hereby confirms that:

d. 
lT,:T""r accounts of Jhe'do*fu"v have be# ryre;;;;;"",s;;";

a' in the preparation of the arurual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
had been followed aJong with proper explanatior, *tuti.,g to material?epartures;

b' ' such accounting policies have been seLcted and appliid consistently and the
Directors made judgments and estimates that ur" ,.uro-nuble and p.uderrt so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31"t March,
2024 and of the profit/loss of the Company for that year;c' proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets

A :l^tit_!::p"_1l il! for preveqting and- detecting fraud and oiher irre"gularities;

basis;

B 501, sth Floor, 02 Commereial Building, Asha Nagar Pank Road, Near Minerva Indl, Estate, Mulund (Wl, Mumbai - 80, Tel. ; 022 6907 8300

ff)
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e' Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisi6ns ofall applicable laws and that such syste-, *.r" adequate and operatingeffectively.

The company has constituted Internal complaint Committee under the sexualHarassment of women at workplace (Prev.r,ion, prohibition and Redressal) Act,2013' The Company did not receive any complaint during the period under review.

The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence noinJormation as per provisions of section a3(a)(ii) of the Act read with Rule 4(4) of theCompanies (share Capitar and Debenture) Ruiei ,2014is furnished.

The company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under reviewand hence no information as pei provisionr or section 54(1Xd) of the Act read withRule 8(13) of the Companies l5rrarl Capital and Debenture) Rules ,2014is furnished.

The Company has not issued any equity shares under Emproyees stock optionscheme during the year under revilw andhence no information as per provisions ofsection 62(1)(b) of the Act read with Rule 12(9) of the companies (share Capital andDebenture) Rules, 201,4 is furnished.

During the year under review, there were no instances of non-exercising of votingqights in respect of shares purchased directry uy 
"-proyees under a scheme

H1i1""*T^11T": :lJ? :r ,*- *.," qead. witir nhu' ro1+y of Companies- (shareCapital and Debentures) Rules, 20-j,4is furnished.

B 501, sth Floor, 02 Commercial Building, Asha Nagar Park Road, Near Minerva Indl. Estate, Mulund (Wl, Mumbai - 80. Tel. : 022 6907 8300
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F. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND APPRECIATION:

' Your Directors take this opportunity to thank the customers, shareholders, suppliers,
bankers, business parbrers/associates, financial institutions and Central and State
Governments for their consistent support and encouragement to the Company.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
RIKHAV SECURITIES LIMITED

HITESH HIMATLAL LAKHA
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN:01457990

MONIL RAIENDRA SHAH
Director
DIN:08064436 ,

Place: Mumbai
Date:1.6/07 /2024

B 501, Sth Floor, OA Commercial Building, Asha Nagar Park Hoad, Near Minerva lndl. Estate, Mulund.[W),.Mumbai- 80.Tel.:022 69.07 8300

DEpOSfTOpy pARTtCtpANT lD : 1 2051500 0 DPSEBI REG. NO, IN-DP.CDSL-417-2QO7. Email: inf o@rikhav'net o web: www.rikhav.net

NSE: MEMBERSHIP NO.12804 / BSE CLEARING NO.3174 . SEBIREG. NO' |NZOOO157737

peg o.tl- o-{F\Ca r1O qzL -A,t"hf\oof P'3 Tow€r Mtrrvbcd - h6ooo I

'&N,



RIKHAV SECURITIES LTD Member: BSEo NSEo ICEX. DP:CDSL

- 

Growth, Fleturns and Securit

CIN : U99999MH1995P1C086635

Annexure L

Form AOC-L

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 rcad.with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 201,4)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or
associate companies or joint ventures

Part A Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

'J,. Sr. No. :-l_

2. Name of the subsidiary : RSL IFSC private Limited

3. The date since when subsidiary wasacquired: 1,9/06/2019 ,

4. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company,s
reporting period. : Same as Holding Company

5. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial
year in the case of foreign subsidiaries. : NA

6. Share capi.tal

7. Reserves and surplus

B. Total assets

9. Total Liabilities

10. Investrnents

1'J,. Turnover

12. Profit before taxation

13. Provision fortaxation

:-1.5,4'1,,000

:.23,58,774

: L,85,85018

:8,16,244

: NIL

:1'1.,52,674

: (16,94,81.4)

B 501, Sth Floor, 02 CommercialBuilding, Asha Nagar Park Road, Near Minerva Indl. Estate, Mulund [W), Mumbai.80. Tel.:022 6907 8300
DEPos|ToRYPARTlclPANT|D:12o515oo.DPSEB|REG,No.|N.DP.cDSL-417-2oo7.e'
NSE; MEMBERSHIP NO.12S04 / BSE: CLEARING NO.3174 O SEBIREG. NO.INZOOO157737

Rtq oif, . o+He nO QLz ,'A, qthetoor Pj 'ro\of!r,Dq\ qt Stree) crumt$ -qOoo ol



't4.

15.

't6.

Profit after taxation

Proposed Dividend

' Extent of shareholding (inpercentage)

: (L6,34,8L4)

: NIL

:99.99

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations : N.A
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: N.A

Part B Associates and fointVentures

Statement pursuant to Section 1,29 (31of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and joint Ventures - NA

Name of Associates or ]ointVentures Not Applichble

1. Latest audited Balance SheetDate
2. Date on which the Associate or foint Venture
was associated or acquired
3. Shares of Associate or |oint Ventures held by
the company on the year end

Number of Shares

Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint
Venture

Extent of Holding (in percentage)

4. Description of how there is significant influence

5. Reason why the associate/ioint venture is not
consolidated'
6. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per
latest audited Balance Sheet

7. Profit or Loss for the year

i. Considered inConsolidation

ii. NotConsidered inConsolidation - \

#RS
pLrt



1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations : NA
2. Names of associates oi ioint ventures which have been li$*idated-or sold during the

year: Rikhav Insurance Brokers Private Limited
i

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be

certified". 
!:

For and on behaU of the Board of

RIKHAV SECURITIES

Hitesh Himatlal
Managing Director
DIN:01457990

Place: Mumbai
Date:1,6/07 /2024

{y
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Annexure- 2 FORM AOC -2

(Pursuanttoclause(h)of sub-section(3)of 134ofthe ActandRule8(2)ofthecompanies(Accounts)Rules.2014)

' Form For Disclosure of particulars of Contracts/ Arrangements entered by the Company with related parties
referred to sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act,2013 including certain arm's length transaction

under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's Length basis - NIL

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arms Length basis - given below

SR.
NO

Name(s) of the
related party &
Nature of
relationship

Relation
with the
Director

Nature of
Contracts/
Arrangeme
nUTransacti
ons

Duration of
the
ContracU
arrangeme
nts/
Transaction
S

Salient
Terms of
Contract
or
arrangem
ent
/transacti
ons
including
the value
if afiy (in
Rs)

Date of
Approval
By Board

Amount
Paid As
advanc
es if any

1 Hitesh
Himmatlal
Lakhani

Director Director
sitting fees

NA 325000 16t04t2023 NA

z Hitesh
Himmatlal
Lakhani

Director Salary Annual 6,50,000 16t04t2023 NA

? Monil R Shah Director ' Director
sitting fees

NA 4,50,000 1610412023 NA

4 Manish Jain Director Director
sitting fees

NA 5,00,000 16-04-2023 NA

Vaishali R Shah Relative
of
Director

Commission NA 3,03,249 16-04-2023 NA

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
RIKHAV SECURITIES

Chairman & Managing
DIN:01457990

Place: Mumbai
Date:1610712024

B 501, Sth Floor, 02 Commercial Building, Asha Naga'r Park Road, Near Minerva Indl, Esrare, Mulund (Wl, Mumbai - 80. Tel. : 022 6907 8800
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ANNEXURE 3

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(a) Major energy conservation measures taken during the year:
The Company has taken adequate measures to conserves energy by continuous monitoring andeffective use of energy, which is continuous process. ar

(b) Additional investment and proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction ofconsumption of energy: No additional investment pioposed.

(c) Impact of measures at (a) and (b) above for reduction of energy consumption andconsequent impact on the cost of production of goods:
Since it is continuous process of monitoring and ,irugu, the impact is not quantifiable.

(d) During the year comPany has only consumed electricity as follows: (Amount ,000)

Total Amount of electricity consumed
2023-24

Rs. 2,338'
'2022-23

Rs.1,551

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION - NIL

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND oUTGo: NIL

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
RIKHAV SECURITIES LIMIT

HITESH HIMATLAL LAKH
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING
DIN:01457990

Place: Mumbai
Date:16/07/2024

B 501, sth Floor, 02 Commercial Building, Asha Nagar Park Road, Near Minerva Indl. Estate, Mulund (W), Mumbai- 80,.Tel':022 69O7 8300

DEPOSITORY pApTlCtpANT tD: 12051500 o DPSEBI REG. NO. |N-DP-CDSL-417-POO7. Email: info@rikhav.net rWeb: www.rikhav.net
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RI KHAV S ECU R ITI ES LTD MEMbET: BSE'NSEOICEXTDP:CDSL

CIN : U99999MH1995P1C086635

Annexure 4

Report on CSR activitie.s for the year ended March 2Q24

1. B'rief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

CSR policy of RIKHAV SECURITIES LIMITED is aimed at demonstiating care for the

community through promoting education, employment, enhancing vocational skills amongst

children, women and differently abled group'

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Composition of CSR committee is not applicable t9 tl-" Company, considering the total amount

to be spend by a Company cloes not exceed Fifty Lakh rupees' The function of CSR Committee

is discharged by the Board of Directors of such tolnputty. The following are the composition of

Directors of the ComPanY:

3. provide the web-Iink where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects

approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:

bttpfJ I www. riKrav.net

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule

(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Reiponsibility Policy) Rules, 201'4'if' applicable

(attach the rePort).:

since the average CSR Obligation is less than Ten Crore lupees, hence the company is not

required to carry impact assessment'

5. Details of the arriount available for set off in pursuance of sub-ru1e (S; of rute 7 of the

Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Poiicy) Rules, 201'4 and'amount required for set off

for the financial Yeat, f. anY: NA

Sl. No. Financial Year Amount avail.ab'le for set-off
from preteiing financial Years

Amount required to be set-off
for the financial Year, if-anY

u.cqRD\
r:
Il

K

Sr\
q
o,

\ /)

B 801, Sth Floor, 0z Gommercial Building, Asha Nagar Park Road, Near Minerva Indl, Estate, Mulund tw), Mumbai ' 80' Tel' : 022 6907 8300

Name of the Director
Chairman and Managing DirectorHitesh Lakhani

Monil Raiendra Shah

ra Naval Chand Shah
lndependent Director
Independent DirectorTaranq Mehta

DDPsEBlREG'No'ltu.op'cnsl..atzzoo7.Emai|:info@rikhav.netoWeb:www.rikhav.net
NSE : MEMBERSHTp No. 1ago4 / BSE : cLEARING No. 3174 . sEBl REG. No' lNzooo157737
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(in Rs) (in Rs)

-- NA --

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).: Rs.19,72,1.4,867/-

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Idis.39,44,297/-

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial
years: NA

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financialyear, if any: NA

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financialyear (7a+7$-7r| R:s,39,44,297/-

B. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil

Total Amount
Spent for the

Financial Year.
(In Rs.)

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred
to Unspent CSR Account as

per section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund specified
under Schedule VII as per second proviso

to section 135(5).

Amount Amount Date of
transfer

Name of the
Fund

Amount.
f,

Date of
transfer

Rs.39,44,297 / -

(1) (21 (3) (4) (s) (6) (7) (8) (e) (10)
$
(11)

sl.
No.

Na
me
of
the
Pro
ject

Item
from
the

list of
activit
ies in
Sched

ule
VII to

the
Act.

Local
area
(Yes/
No).

Location
of the

project.

Proj
ect

dura
tion.

Amo
unt

alloca
ted
for
the

proje
ct (in
Rs.).

,Amou
nt

spent
in the

current
financi
al Year'(in

Rs.).

Amount
transferred
to Unspent

CSR
Account
for the

projecfas
per Section
13s(6) (in

Rs.).

Mode
of

Imple
menta
tion -
Direct
(Yes/N

o).

Mode of
Implementat

ion -
Through

Implementin
g Agency

Sta
te

Distr
ict

Na
me

CSR
Registra

tion
number

1. 9

@RS
P[rt



2.

Tot
al

, (c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) {4) (s) (6) (7) (8)

Sr.
No

Name of the
Project

Item from
the list of
activities

in
schedule
VII to the

Act

Local
area
(Yes/
No).

Location of the
project.

Amount
spent for

the project
(in Rs.).

Mode
of

imple
mentat
ion -

Direct
(Yes/N

o)

Mode of
implementation -

Through
implementing

agency

State District Na
me

CSR
registration

number

1 Vardhamn
Sanskar
Dham

General
Fund

Yes Mumbai 1,08,000 Direct

2 Vardhamn
Sanskar
Dham

General
Fund

Yes Mumbai 1,08,000 Direct

aJ Vardhamn
Sanskar
Dham

General
Fund

Yes Mumbai 24,000 Direct

4 Shree
Ghoghari V.

Jain Gyati
Bombay

General
Fund

Yes Mumbai 1,08,000 Direct

5 Shri Sihor
Ghoghari V.

Jain '

Foundation
Bombay

General
Fund

Yes Mumbai 21,000 Direct

6 Shree
Ghoghari V
Jain Samaj
Ghatkopar

General
Funds

Yes Mumbai

..\
9

54,000 Direct



7 Vardhman
Sanskar
Dham

General
Funds

Yes Mumbai 4,'13,297 Direct

8 Shreyaskar-
Vishal

Foundation

General
Funds

Yes Mumbai J/")J/JJ,) Direct

9 Runanuban
dh trust -
Cancer
patients

General
Funds

Yes Mumbai 1,,08,000 Direct

10 Shri
Mahavira

Jaina
Vidyalaya

General
Funds

Yes Mumbai 1.08,000 Direct

11 Jeet
Foundation

- Jain
Education

and
Empowerme

nt Trust

General
Funds

Yes Mumbai 1.08,000

?

Direct

1) Vardhman
Sanskar
Dham

General
Fund

Yes Mumbai 24,50,667 Direct

Total 39,44,297 /-

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs.39,44,297 / -

(g) Excess amount for set off , tf vfly, -

Sr. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section
135(5)

Rs.

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial year Rs.0

(iii) Excess amount spent for thofinincial year [(ii)-(i)l Rs.0



(i") surplus arising out of the CgR projects or programs or activities of
the previous financial years, if any

Rs. 0

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial y"ur, 11ffi Rs.0

9.'(a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NIL

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year(s): NIL

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capilatr asset, furnish the details relating to the
created or acquired through CSR spenttn' the financi al year (asset-wise d,etaii{. fp

sl.
No.

Preceding
Financial

Year.

Amount
transferred
to Unspent

CSR
Account
under

section L35
(6) (in Rs.)

Amount
spent in

the
reporting
Financial
Year (in

Rs.).

Amount transferred to
any fund specified under

Schedule VII as per
section 135(6), if any.

Amount
remaining to
be spent in
succeeding
financial

years. (in Rs.)
Name
of the
Fund

Amount
(in Rs).

Date of
transfer.

7. 2022-23 0 25,55,549 0

2.

Total 25,55,549

I

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (e)

sl.
No.

Project
ID.

Name
of the

Project.

Financial
Year in

which the
project was
commenced.

Project
duration.

Total
amount

allocated
for the
project
(in Rs.).

Amount
spent on

the
project
in the

reporting
Financial
Year (in

Rs).

Cumulative
amount

spent at the
end of

reporting
Financial
Year. (in

Rs.)

Status of
the project

Completed
/Ongoing.

1

2

Total

ffi(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital ass6t(s). NA



(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. NA

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital

asset is registered, their address etc. NA

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address

and location of the capital asset). NA

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per section 13p(5): NA

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
RIKHAV SECURITIES

HITESH HIMATLAT LA
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN:0L457990
Place: Mumbai
Date: L6/07 /2024
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DEEPAK C AGARWAL & ASSOCIAIES
CIIARTERED AC C OUNTAI{TS

Independent Auditoros Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF
RIKHAV SECURITIES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the consolidated Financial statements

Opinion

we have audited the consolidated financial statements of lrvs RIKHAV SECURITIESLIMTTED ("the Holding company"), and its subsidiary which comprise the balance sheet as at31't March 2024, and the consolidated statement of Profit and ioss, and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidaied financial statements,including summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.(herein
after referred to as o' the consolidated financial siatements'). .
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, theaforesaid -Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in themanner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with ihe accounting principlesgenerally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the co*p*y us at March 3lst,2024' and consolidated profit and its consolidated cash flows for the year .;J.l on that date.

Basis for Opinion

we conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (sAs) specified undersection 143(10) of the companies Act,2013. our responsibilities under those Standards are furtherdescribed in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements section of ourreport' we are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by theInstitute of chartered Accountants of India iogether with the ethical requirements that are relevantto our audit of the financial statements underlhe provisions of the Companies Act,2013 and theRules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with theserequirements and the code of Ethics. We believo that the audit evidence we have obtained issufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors, Report thereon

The company's management and Board of pirectors are responsible for the other information. Theother information comprises the infosnatfn included in the'Company,s unn*i i.port, but does notinclude the financial statements and our auditorso report thereon.

Reg Add : 117 Linhvay Estate, Mezzanine Floor, Above Greens Restaurant,
Link Road,Malad West, Mumbai - 400 064.

Email : dagarwalnassociates@gmail.com Tel: 022-35 I I 4305



Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
'the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor's report, we conclude that there is no material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with the Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance, and consolidated cash flows of the Holding Company
including its subsidiary in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective board of
director of subsidiary company are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and

detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statement that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of directors of Holding
company and Subsidiary company are responsible for assessing the Holding Company and of
subsidiary company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company and of its subsidiary are also responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable-asturance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstat5ment, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bur is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material

afe

a

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and considered



material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identiff and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from enor,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.
. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.
. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management
. . Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Holding Company and its subsidiary's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modiS our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Holding Company and its subsidiary to cease to continue as a going concern
. . Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We communicate with those
charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including arly significant deflrciencies in intemal control that
we identify during our audit. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
Scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
Intemal control that we identifu during our audit. '

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and'to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
'knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so

far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules,2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 3lst March,2024taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and

Subsidiary Company, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. '

(0 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
ttAnnexurett.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 1 I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does have pending litigations which would impact its financial position and the
same has been disclosed in the Notes to Accounts
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which

there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and beliel other than as

disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding
company or its subsidiary company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend'or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the likeort behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represerited, that, to the best of its knowledge and beliel other than as

disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds'have been received by the company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,



lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

(v) The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of the
provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act,2013.

(h) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under Section 197(16) of the
Act, in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the managerial
remuneration given is within the limit prescribed by section 197 of the Companies Act,2013.

With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order, 2020 (the "Order"l '.CARO") issued by the Central Government in terms of Section
143(l l) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor's report, according to the information and
explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company and issued
by the respective auditor of its associate included in the consolidated financial statements of the
Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications
or adverse remarks in these CARO reports

For Deepak C Agarwal &
Chartered Accountan

b-g
Deepak C Agarwal
Proprietor
Membership No. 165938
Place: Mumbai
Date: 16th Jaly 2024
UDIN:2{ I 6 rt 39 Bk A DcH 3r zt
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ANEXURE TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the
companies act,2013 ("the act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s RIKHAV
SECURITIES LIMITED ("the Holding Company") and its subsidiary as of 31't March 2O24 in
conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies and its
associate company which are companies incorpor.ated in India, are responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India (lCAl)".1 These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal Financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 20t3.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by lCAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2Ot3, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting.was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing pro&dures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that I weakness



exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statembnts

Inherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all matefial respects, an adequate intemal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deepak C Agarwal &

::k-: "

Proprietor
Membership No. 165938
Place: Mumbai
Datez 16107/2024
T]DIN:

Associates
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RIKHAV SECURITIES LIMITED

Office Add: OFFICE NO. 922-4 gTH FLOOR, P,I.TOWER, DALAL STREET, MTJMBA!, MUMBAI - 400007
(crN - u99999MH199sP1C08663s)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH , 2024

Particulars Note No.
FY 2023-24

(lNR in 000's)

FY 2022-23
(lNR in 000's)

I. EQUIW AND TIABILITIES

{1} Shareholder's Funds

(a) Share Capital

(b) Reserves and Surplus

(c),Money received against share warrants

(21 Share Application money pendins allotment

(3) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-Term Borrowings

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

(4) Current Liabilities

(a) Short-Term Borrowings

(b) Trade Payables

(c) Other Current Liabilities

(d) Short-Term Provisions

Totol Equity & Liabilities

il.ASSETS

{1) Non-Current Assets

(o) Property, Plont & Equipment

(i) Gross Block

(ii) Depreciation

(iii) Net Block

(b) lntongible Assets

(i) Gross Block

(ii) Depreciation

(iii) Net Block

(b) Non-current investments

(c) Long term loans and advances

(2) Current Assets

(a) Trade receivables

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

(c) Short-term loans and advances

(d) Other current assets

Total Assets

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

a

10

11

t2
13

14

L5

7,49,820

72,35,632

2,697

2,773

3,99,088

10,52,t75

7,858

88,745

1,49,820

8,08,850

4,57L

78,0t4

7,21,,494

54,949

4\.167
29,3g,7gg 18,s8,865

84,389

(6s.402
78,967

$9,764l,

18,987

3,772

(2,339)

19,796

3,583

(1,9301

1,433

73,L1,,927

t3,64,909

41,922

1,36,368

L,262

61,,982

1,653

9,76,468

32,199

55,926

7,16,07I
o 100

48,Lsz

29,38,789 18,58,955

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Schedules relerred to above and notes dftoched there to form an integrol part of Balance Sheet

This is the Balonce Sheet referred to in our Report of even ddte.

,,^\P
Deepak C Agarwal

(Proprietor)

FRN :140957W

M. No.:155938

Place: Mumbai

Date:.16l07l2O24

UDIN: 24 16.

ffi\' For And on Behalf of Board

{gr 
=\3,\ FoRRrKHAvsEcuRrIEsLrMrrED

,#,n^n

(Managing Director) (Director)

(DtN - 014s79e0) (DtN - 08064435 )

I

W- 3o,nc.d
Sona Jain 

I

rany Secretary)g i3KfiD cH 3r2r
Hemant Shah



RIKHAV SECURITIES LIMITED

Office Add: OFFICE NO. 922-A, gTH FLOOR, P.J.TOWER, DAAL STREET, MUMBA\, MuMBAt - 4OOOOI

(crN - u99999MH199sP1C08663s)

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED ON 31st MARCH, 2024

Sr. No. Particulars Note. No.
FY 2023-24

(lNR in 000's)
FY 2022-23

(lNR in 000's)

I

tl

IV

VI

vtl

vill

IX

X

XI

xtl

xill

XIV

XV

xvl

XVII

I Revenue from operations
I

lOther Income
I

I

Expenses:

Employee Benefit Expense

Financial Costs

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Other Administrative Expenses

lll. Total Revenue (l +ll)

V. Total Expenses

Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax

Exceptional ltems

Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V - Vl)

Extraordinary ltems

Profit before tax (Vll - Vlll)

Tax expense:

(1) Current tax

{2) Deferred tax

(3) Previous year tax

Profit(Loss) from the perid from continuing operations

Profit/Loss From Associates

Tax expense of discounting operations

Profit/(Loss) from Discontinuing operations (Xll - Xlll)

Profit/(Loss) for the period (Xl + XIV)

Earning per equitv share:

(1) Basic

(zi oitutea

Ib

L7

18

19

20

2t

(ilr- v)

{rx-x)

L0,34,228

7r,767

4,94,677

50,r75
11,05,995 5,44,852

1,7t,795
29,439

6,048

3,85,148

86,L87

36,018

4,887

1,72,698

5,92,431 2,99,79L

5,13,564 2,45,062

s,13,564 2,45,062

4Z 392

5,L3,607 2,45,454

88,745

(t,797l,

4,570

4L,t66

4,22,O89 2,O4,288

(4,69L1

4,22,099 1,99,597

4,22,089 1,99,597

28

28

13

13

Sona Jain 
I

rany Secretary)

Hemant Shah

Schedules referred to obove ond notes ottached there to form dn integral port of Profit & Loss Stotement

This is the Profit & Loss Statement referred to in our Report of even date.

For Deepak C Agarwal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

''\P ffi*;,-
Deepak C Agarwal lib.\ ;:. ;1.;,r i-l! ji
(Proprietor) \#l. __--4.;./
FRN:140e67w Vllf
M. No.:155938

Place: Mumbai

Datet t6lo7 12024

uDrN: 2Q t 6 S*jo I O l<fl l)cl-l 3f

,ffi$it\,, ForAnd on Behalf of Board

,r/:7-* -';.r.il\ Fo R R I KH AV s E cu R trt Es Lt M rr E D

iiS/ 
"'-l.l\iiq-i .j'1,!! r **Ls-'\liii...* f '*:'

\- -ii 
->' Hitesh H. Lakhani Monil R. Shah-{:t::.j.;-r

(Managing Director) (Director)

(DtN - 014s7990) (DtN - 08064435 )

l-.-:

@"o$cr'G'



RIKHAV SECURITIES TIMITED

Consolidated Statement of cash flows for the vear ended 31 March 2024

{Amount in INR unless otheruise statedl

Particulars ( Amount in 000'sl

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit Before Tax

Add :

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Finance cost

Less:

Interest received

lOperating profits before working capital changes

lChanges 
in working capital

llncrease in trade payables
I

lDecrease in other current liabilities
I

I Increase in short term borrowings

Decrease in trade receivables

Decrease in short term loans & advances

Increase in other current assets

Cash generated used in operations

Income tax paid

Net cash flows used in operating activities (A)

Cash flow from Investing activities

Foreign Exchange Gain / Loss

Payment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Intangible asset under development

Purchase of Investments

Net proceeds from fixed deposits

Interest received

Net cash flow from investing activities (B)

Cash flow from Financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Interest paid

Net cash flow from financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents comprise (Refer note 15)

Balances with banks

On current accounts

Fixed deposits with maturity of less than 3 months

Cash on hand

Cheques on hand

Total cash and bank balances at end of the year

6,048

29,436

(71,767)

5,13,607

(36,2821

3,t8,443
(27,3s0,

3,2t,074

13,936

7,800

20,4r0

4,77,324

6,543r4

4Z

(s,4281

(18e)

(3,5s,89s)

(6,68,63s)

1,904

(29,4361

11,31,538

4r,t66
L0,90,472

(9,5&3381

127,s32)

94,602

4r,766

L36,368

(25,224)

1,59,555

7,926

1,36,358

For Deepak C Agarwal & Associates For And On Behalf of Board

FOR RIKHAV SECURITIES !IMITED

f%
Monil R. Shah

(Director)

(DrN - 08054436 )

a

Soura'{a.n
Sona Jain

(Companv Secretarv

Chartered Accountants

Deepak C Agarwal

(Proprietor)

FRN :140967W
M. No.:165938

Place: Mumbai

Date': t6lo7 /2024
uDrN: 2Q t6.'13( BleADcit 3f2.r

Hitesh H. [akhani
(Managing Director)

(DrN - 014s7990)

Hemant Shah

(cFo)

R/

*
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RIKHAV SECURITIES LIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF

THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,ZOT+

NOTE -'1'

L. The Consolidated Financial Statement Includes Results of Associates in accordance
with AS-21 "Accounting for Investment in Subsidiary in Consolidated Financial
Statement"

Highlights of Performance of Subsidiary to overall Performance of Company:

Name of Associate &
Subsidiary

RSt IFSC Private Limited
(Susidiary)

LatestAudited Balance
Sheet Date

31.03.2024

Date onWhich
Associate/Subsidiary was
Acquired

19.o6.20t8

Numberof Shares Held t5,40,998 Shares

Amount of Investment Rs.1,54,10,O00/-

Extent of Holding in o/o 99.99o/o

Profit & (Loss) for the Year Rs. (16,34,814)/-

Considerd in
Consolidation

Rs. (16,34,8t4)/-

Not Considerd in
Consolidation

Rs.0/-

A. Significant Accounting Policies_:,- .
t-

1. Company Overview
Rikhav Securities Limited is one
brokers. The company's objective

of the
is to

professionally
be a leader in

managed Shares & Stock

full-service

11(tn
pga



RIKHAV SECURITIES TIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF
THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,}O}4

brokerage house - to provide comprehensive advisory services to the client and to
offer complete management of their financial planning requirements. Our major
business focus has been on the development of Arbitration, HNI clients & Retail
clients. Currently, one of the Company's key strengths is the diverse portfolios held
by its board of directors - some of which include the Cash and Derivatives side of
the Capital Market, investing in IPOs, etc.

The company has modernized computerized operations with the state-of-art
technology. Our clients also have access to Internet based client-trading services in
the equities and derivatives segment. Our group of professionals does ensure the
best available services for trading depository online Back office etc. We believe
'Research Delivers and Research Differentiates'. RSL IFSC ('Wholly Owned
Subsidiary ('WOS)), Subsidiary of Rikhav Securities Limited is engaged in providing
shares & Stock Broking Services.

2. General:
The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles to comply in all material respects with the notified Accounting
Standards IASJ under Cornpanies Accounting Standard Rules, 20!5, as amended, the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act,20L3 (the Act).

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
on an accrual basis. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the
Company and are consistent with those used in the previous year except for those
that are specifically disclosed for the change in policies. The method of accounting
followed is mercantile basis.

3. Use of Estimates:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requfres frhnagement to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during
the reporting year end. Although these estimates were based upon management's



RIKHAV SECURITIES TIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF
THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,?O?4

best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these
estimates. Any revisions to the accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in
the current and future vears.

4. Principles of Consolidation:

The consolidated Financial Statements relate to the company and it's WOS Company
& Associates

The consolidated Financial Statements have been Prepared on the following basis:
o The Financial Statement of WOS is Included in consolidation are drawn up to

same reporting period as of the company
o The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the

applicable Accounting Standard and applicable guidelines as laid down in
guidance notes. ,

The Consolidated Financial Statements includes results of WOS.

Name of the Company o/o of Shareholding

RSL IFSC Private Limited [WOS) 99.99o/o

5. RevenueRecosnition:
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the revenuej can be reliably measured.
Revenue recognition in the form of commission & brokerages for sub brokering with
BRLMs for various IPO's is considered in the year in which the IPO's are serviced.
Interest Income is treated to accrue on timely basis.

Lending Premium / Borrowing charges from the trades in Securities Lending &
Borrowing Market ISLBM) segment is recognized in the year in which the contract
for lending / borrowing is entered into.
Income from the Stock Exchanges in the form of Incentives under Liquidity
Enhancement Incentive Programme Scheme (LEIPSJ is recorded on the receipt
basis' 

n -n1

6. Property. Plant & Equipment& Intangible Assets:
Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation in

#nqw
Balance Sheet at its written down value as on date of Balance Schedule



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF

THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,?O?4

III of the Companies Act,2}'J,3.Costs include all expenses incurred to bring the
assets to its present location and condition.
Intangible Assets are recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition of such
assets and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment.

7. Depreciation:
Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the written-down value method over
the useful lives of assets as per Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Acf 20L3.
Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a period is proportionately charged.
Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful
lives, commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for its use as
per AS 26 Intangible Assets. The carrying value of the asset is depreciated over the
remaining useful of the asset as per Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. The
carrying value of the asset after retaining the residual value is recognized in the
opening balance of retained earnings where the remainlng useful life of the asset is
'Nil'.

B. Investments:
Investments are either classified as current or non-current based on Management's
intention at the time of purchase.Current Investments are carried at cost.Long term
Investments are carried at cost less provisions recorded to recognize any decline,
other than temporary, in the carrying value of each investment.

9. Shares. Stocks & Securities under SLBM:

The Company has recognized current liability (refer note no. 5) for the trades
executed for sale of shares in the spot market through borrowing it from the SLBM

segment and has recognized the gain / loss on account of change in Fair Value of the
obligation on valuation date.

l0.Current Assets. Loans & Advances
Loans and Advances are stated at the value if realized in the ordinary course of
business. Irrecoverable amounts, if any are accounted as bad debts and \ or
provided for as per management's judgment or only upon final settlement of
accounts with the parties. , '' '

11. Provision for taxation

'eH
gl, l5



RIKHAV SECURITIES LIMITED
SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIESAND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF

THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,aO}4

Provision for income tax has been made in accordance with normal provisions of
Income Tax Act 1961. The deferred tax for timing differences between the book and
tax profits for the year is accounted for, using tax rates and laws that have been
substantively enacted as ofthe balance sheet date.

12. Provisions. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

The company recognizes a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of
past event on which it is probable that there will be outflow of resources to settle
the obligation in respect of which reliable estimate can be made. Contingent assets
are neither recognized nor disclosed.

Following are the Contingent Liabilities as on the Balance Sheet date.

o Bank Guarantee availed from the Banks are as follows:

Axis Bank
ICICI Bank
HDFC Bank
State Bank of Mauritius -

Yes Bank -

Total

Rs.12L Crores t
Rs.20 Crores
Rs.30 Crores
Rs. 5 Crores
Rs. 25 Crores

- Rs.201 Crores

o Following are the dues in dispute before the respective statutory authorities.

Sr. No. Statute Period Amount in
Dispute Status

L The Finance
Act1994
fService Tax')

F.Y.20L4-20L5 Rs.6,90,988/-

2 The Finance
Act1994
[Service Tax)

F.Y.,20L4-20I5
F.Y.2015-20L6
F.Y.20L6-20I7
F.Y.2017-20L8

Rs.4,32,898/-
Rs.3,81,01,7/-
Rs.L2,63,929/-
Rs.9,84,519/-

Appeal -
CESTAT

3 The Finance
ActL994
fservie TafI'

April to Sept
2015 Rs.S,73,896/-

4 The Income
Tax Act 196L

F.Y.20L9-2020 Rs. 16,870/-

5 The Income F.Y.2021-2022 Rs. 4,53,31 ,860 /- Aoneal -

6'fqf
>*\

Ve\



LIMITED

SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIESAND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF
THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,?O?4

Tax Act 196L CITTAI
6 The Income

Tax Act L961
F.Y.2020-2021 Rs.20,47,472/- Appeal -

CITTA]
7 The Income

TaxAct 1961
F.Y.20L9-2020 Rs. L,L3,930/-

Total Rs. 5,18,37,379 /-

12. Details of Immovable Property:

Schedule of lmmovable Property Title Deeds Not Held in the Name of Compan

Relevant ltem in
the Balance

Sheet

Description
of ltem of
Property

Gross
Carrying

Value

Title Deeds
Held in the
Name Of

Whether
Title Deed
Holder is a
Promoter,
Director or
Relative of
Promoter/
Director or
Employee

of
Promoter/
Director

Property
Held Since

Which
Date

Reason
Property
not held

in the
name of

Company

a)
Property, Plant &

Equipment
Building

Rs.
12 Crores

AHL
Investment
Consultants

Private
Limited

Director
Relative

23-08-
2009

Leave &
License
Basis

Property, Plant &
Equipment

Building Rs.S Crores

Rikhav
Insurance
Brokers
Private
Limited

Shareholder 28-07-
2021

Leave &
License
Basis

Property, Plant &
Equipment

Building
Rs.1.2
Crores

Vaishali R.
Shah

Relative of
Director

04-01-
2014

Leave &
License
Basis

Property, Plant &
Equipment

Building Rs.2 Crores
Hitesh H.
Lakhani

Director
19-1-2003

Leave &
License
Basis

b) Investment
Prooertv

F NIL

6f. ;*g
&"#*pr
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RIKHAV SECURITIES LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF

THE CONSOTIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,?O?4

Prop,erty, Plant &
Equipment
Retired from
Active Use and
Held for Disoosal

13. Capital WIP Ageing:

14. Intangible Assets Under DevelopmentAgeing Schedule:

Capital WIP Ageing Schedule
Amount in CWIP for a period of (Rs.)

CapitalWork In
Prooress

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
VCATS

Total

a) Projects in
Proqress

NIL NIL

b) Projects
Temporarily
Susoended

NIL

Intanqible Assets Under Development Aqeinq Schedule
Amount in Rs.

Amount in CWIP for a oeriod of

lntangible Assets Under
Development

Less
than 1

vear

1-2
years

2-3
years

More than 3
years Total

Proiects in Proqress NIL

Proiects Temporarilv Suspended NIL

{,Pry>/ -<r\'-{



RIKHAV SECURITIES LIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF

THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,aO}4

15. During the year there has been no proceedings initiated or are pending against the
company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
fProhibition) Act, 19BB (45 0f lgBgJ and rules made there-under.

16. During the year the company has continued availing Working Capital limits against
security by way of pledge of quoted shares & securities. There is no material
discrepancy in quarterly statements filed by the company with banks/financial
institutions and are in agreement with books of accounts.

17. During the year there have been no transactions with companies Struck off under
section 248 of the Companies Act,20t3 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

18. During the year there has been no tax assessment or search or survey or proceedings
under any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, Lg6L. Hence there are no
transactions needed to be recorded in the books of accounts which has been
surrendered or disclosed as income in the Tax Assessmonts.

19. During the year the company is covered under section 135 of the Companies Act
20L3. Accordingly during the year the company has expended way by of Donation of
Rs.39,44,297 /- towards CSR contribution.

20. During the financial year the company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency
or Virtual Currency.

21. Registration of Charges Schedule:

Registration of Charges Schedule

Sr. No.
Creditor
Details.

Asset on
which

Charge is
Created

Nature of
Charge

Pending
Registration of

(Charge/Satisfacti
on)

Charge
Registration
No. (lf

satisfaction
is pending

to be
registered)

No. of
Days

Statutory
Period

exceeded
by

Reason
S

1.

Axis
Bank

Limited

lmmovable
property or
any interest

therein;
Personal

Guarantee
Line on Fixed

Fi;ed - NA 1 00503831

c$s

NA

:1.na

il...\-

NA

;ji..'i:,".;ffi,fi#\
'8{
z\
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RIKHAV SECURITIES LIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF

THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,?O?4

Deposit

2.
tctcl
Bank

Limited

Book debts;
Memorandum

of charge
dated

611012021

Fluctuating NA 100495258 NA NA

3.

rcrcl

Bank

Limited

Term Deposit Fixed NA 100814930 NA NA

4.

HDFC
Bank

Limited

Car Fixed
I

NA 100878127 NA NA

5..

HDFC
Bank

Limited

Book debts;
Floating
charge;
Current
Assets

Fluctuating NA 100385217 NA NA

6.

SBM
Bank

(lndia)

Limited

FDR Fixed NA 1 00308072 NA NA

7.

SBM
Bank

(lndia)

Limited

Receivables
and Personal

Guarantee
Fixed NA 1 0090141 8 NA NA

8.

Axis
Bank

Limited

Working
Capital Loan
Agreement

Fluctuating NA 100653579

-,{atffi3q4-

NA NA

ffi;+::+1";5
-!,1''1i*,mb* 
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RIKHAV SECURITIES TIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF

THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,ZOT+

There are no charges or satisfaction of any charges that are yet to be registered
with the ROC that goes beyond the statutory period. The above list is of the charges
Open as on 31st March, 2024.

22. During the period under audit the company has not granted anyloans & Advances
to Promoters, directors, KMPs, and the related parties.

23. During the year the Company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or other lenders.

24.The Company doesn't provides for any Employee Benefit Obligation or Termination
benefit as per AS 15 - Employee Benefits like Gratuity but has the practice to
account for the same in the year in which the behefit or amount is paid to the
employee.

$
4,

ffi>/

ai-
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ÔJ

nr6
-^P(ETt
gJ (u
Ubc

o
Poii o0ggoo(J-C
be
o-

>Rc!
+ro
Fl

@+
CN

Ol
f\l
oo

rn
N
r€|
rO
ol
co

rl(o
CN

(r')
r{l
O't

o
00o
F{
oo
c!

00
Flod
CN

00rl
c{
F{
r.o

oo

r.o
Fro
st
or
<t

ro
(o
oo
F
sf
rJ')
Fl

00
ooo
o)
o)
(n

t\
(.r')
tn
tn
oo
(n

sloo
cririf
tn

ooo
c!
c!
sf

rl
(c}
o(\
F
rl
t'l

(o
No
ro(n
d
rl

.t
f
ct
l!
t
L
oE
6
-c
c)
L
(o
-c
VI

ol (u
(Jl (J
>t >
LI Lol oql vl
PI+.,9l ool (u
ol o

L
ots
o
-o(o
'(o

tt1

-'-
L

IJ.J

EI -U)

€l s
.=l €
ql E
EI ?ot oo
bl sil I
'l{

L
o
c
(u

E
(u
bo
(o
L
o

bl
EI
El

€l-ut
31 3l

;l
ol(JI

st €

sl stf;l ss
6l Hpzta

o
oE
o
qJ

E
|!z

.9
P
(o
E
Pc
(u
L
L

(J

.t
foo
rr.r 'E
r lf6

pE
-ooo"

o
P
(o
&.
o
C'
L
OJ

o()

o
.9

OJ|t,
P
-ooo

o
P>-(o

hd
+jgco
all

cq
=F

ot^ 'Eo(o
oEd
E.g u
FU9

OF&,=
F

rn
o
-o(o
C'
d
o)E
(o

(t,
tiz
o
C'
,(J

a
EItr
A
FIo
u,zo
U
t{
F
ho
FE+<Nao
rxN
ZE
EEE<
PE
utE
FF{
Zcft>ooBr!{nYZqa Elz&o<
O lrlrII>
f< r,r
otEzl-
A&zo<Ir
(A

U
Flo
(,
z
F2DUo'6
L)(J4
l-1o
-.x,-t .P
tlGtr&
z t)
gN
(a



P9,
(̂lJ

vry(oE
EE(Jc)
c

th
bo
.cc
L
(o
QJ

(I,
t
(o
o
L()
c

t
bo
.cc
L
(o
(u

.=
ov,
(o
(lJ
L(J
c

:R
Fl
4(\l
rl
Fl

o
s
00
n
sf
rn

;R
oo
n
sf
CN

o)
Ol
.{.
r{

ri
no

g)
c!
o

O)c!
ct

ro
(o
$
o)
sf

ro
rn
N
rl
sl

(o
00(\
slo
N

(o
r\(o
c+
ol
sr

o
coo
s{
00
N

m
o]
F\q
o)

o
00o
oo
(\l

r{
rn
Ot
F(o
o)

?

4
rl

rl
no

ol
m
ci

o)
o?
o

ro}
Nq
cn
ro
d
Fl

$
cn
(o
oo
r.0

o)
00o
r\l(\
sf

(o
F\q
ro(n
o
F{

$oo
rn
$.
tn

rn
ln
sf
rn
00
cn
rl

\|oo
ro
sr
r/i

(n
LN
sf
tn
oo
rY)
Fl

g4'liu
,El t^El *o-l tt,
PIoJl (uzlz

df,c
;l Elg

rl a
Fl* 5
3H s 

=
dFl 3'>t ga=

o
(o
t
Lo
ocg
f

o

.gp
o-L
89
+ro(uCz=

F

.9
P(o
E,
.!ir'
o-
P
(uz

t':
ux
qooE
fL!
P
(u
&.

*
c.P(1C
-uLC
:JPpth(uo
E>c

oo o) rl rl

')*
{{"rY
'glbi

w
o
f
(o

J
o
oo
E
(u
L
op
rnc
o(J
(u

o
3
(u
J
(o

+,o
JL
rog
qJ

+,
.g(!
PP

8g(nF(oF
v,Y(u

PC

(Jc
FO
!E
>=
i-P
0Jgr
,.l Q)

p(u

U()
C(E:=(J
..' o

t
Fz
o
LJ

,9

oI{
F
a
rlo(h
z
U
ET
F
F
lrro
Ftr+<N
OrOstZE
4&FE<
P>qi
Fr F{2mpa
o!qHaYZNEIze,o<
tnlrlEl>
Fr r,r
o!Ezi
A&zo
<lrr
CA
IlI
LJ

5o
(5
z
Fz
o
U(J

Fz
(J
IT
zg
(n



RIKHAV SECURITIES LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF
THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,?O?4

B. Notes on Accounts:

1,. In the Opinion of the directors;

a) The current assets, loans and advances are approximately of the value stated, if
realized in the ordinary course of business.

b) The provision for all known liabilities are adequate and not in excess of the
amount reasonably necessary.

Current year Previous year
(Rupees)(Rupees)

2. Contingent Liabilities provided for
3. Payment to Directors:

- Rent Paid
- DirectorRemuneration
- Commission & Brokerage

4. Payment to auditors :

a) Audit fees

bJ Income tax and other matters
1,50,000 1,20,000

30,000

NIL

NIL ,
NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL
NIL

NIL

i)
iD

iiD

iv)
v)
vi)

1,50,000 1,50,000

Disclosure in respect of AS-18 'Related Party Disclosure' as notified by the
companies Accounting Standard Rules, 2006 and Institute of Chartered Accounts of
India are given below:

Names and Relationships of the related parties:

Key Management Personnel;

Mr. Hitesh H. Lakhani
Mr. Manish L. fain
Mr. Monil R. Shah

Mr. Tarang Madanjit Mehta
Mr. Rajendra Shah

..- '
v

Since, FY 2022-23 they are appointed as Dir..to., . On L6.O2.2023,Sarthak Kothari
retired on 28th March 2024 and Rajendra Shah was appointed on 28th March 2024.

ffiffi>f \lu
{.V-+
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RIKHAV SECURITIES LIMITED

SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIESAND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF

THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,ZOT+

vii) Concerns under same Management
aJ RSL IFSC Private Limited

viii) Transactions with the related parties during the year (figures in rupees) are as

follows, balance as on 31st March, 2O24:

Transaction with related
parties

Company under same
management

Key Management
Personnel and Relatives

Loan given NIL
TNILI

Director
Remuneration/Dire ctor
Sittins Fees

NIL

[NrL)
19,50,000

Salary Paid to Relatives
IDirectorl

N

TN

L

LI a

NIL
NIL

Share of Profit to Relatives
[Director')

N
rN

L

L]
NIL
NIL

Professional fees
[Relative of shareholder)

N

t'N

L
L')

L,34,93,200

Rent Paid
fRelative / Shareholderl

N

rN
L
LI

L2,00,000

Amenities Charges Paid N

rN
L
LI

4,00,000

Commission & Brokerage
Paid

N
.rN

L
L')

3,03,7.48

Interest Received N
rN

L
L')

NIL
rNIL]

ix) Disclosure in respect of Micro and Small Enterprises:

The concern is in process of compiling relevant information from its supplier about
their coverage under the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006. As the concern has not received any information from its supplier as on date
regarding their status under the above said Act and hence no disclosure has been
made and accordingly Trade Payables has been disclosed (Refer Note 6).

v'

6rPS:1



RIKHAV SECURITIES LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF

THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,?O?4

5. Earnings pershare (EPS)

6. Preliminary expenditure is being amortised in 5 equal installments over a period of
5 years commencing from the year in which the company commences its
operations;

7. For the Purpose of Preparation of financial statements in Indian rupees, income and
expenses , assets & liabilities are translated at RBI Rgfernce rate except equity share
capital received are stated at closing rate. The net impact of such changes is
presented under foreign exchange translation reserve. RBI Reference Rate of Rs.
83.3739/$ as on 3L.03.2024 has been taken for Currency Conversion.

B. The previous period figures have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary
to conform to the current presentation.

9. The lease period is for 30 years as per Rent agreement and hence Advance Lease
Premium of Rs. L563500/- is apportioned in 30 Years. As per As-19 Accounting for
Lease, Lease Payments [excluding Cost for Service such as insurance and
maintainence) are recognised as expense in the statement of Profit & Loss Account.
The Lessee shall pay Rs.344/-p.a as lease rent calculated @ Re L/- in respect of said
premises as per Lease Agreement.

1,0. Additional information as per Schedule III of the Companies Ac! 20L3 to the extent
.applicable are as under:
(As certified by the Directors and relie{ upon by the Auditors)

CurrentYear PreviousYear

a)

bl
c)

Value of Import on CIF Basis

Expenditure in the foreign Currency
Earning in Foreign Exchange- .

l-

Nil

$379L9
$17685

Nil

$82356
$113292

1-1. Previous Year figures have been rearrhnged and regrouped wherever necessary to

Particulars CurrentYear Previous Year
Net profit/(loss) for equity share holders
fNumerator used for calculationl

42,20,89,134 20,42,86,3L0

No ofequitv shares ofRs 10/- each 14,98,20,000 14,98,20,000
Weiehted Averaqe Number of equitv shares '1,,49,82,000 7,49,82,000
Earnings per share of Rs 1-0l- each 28.L7 13.64

trR>t -i'

make them comparable with the current year figures.



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF

THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,?O?+

As per our report ofeven date attached

ForDeepak C Agarwal & Associates For and on behalfofBoard
ForRikhav Securities limitedChartered Accountants

WP. &Deepak-C Agarwal
(Proprietor)
Membership No.:165

Date: 16/07 /2024
Place: Mumbai

UDIN: LqrcS3 ga BKff O*r rls?s

H. Lakhani
r)

- o!4s7990)

HemantShah * !

(cFo)

fe€
Monil R Shah
(Director)
(DrN - 08064436)

3 eno..5q'..,
Sona fain

(Company Secretary)



RIKHAV SECURITIES TIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAI STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3lst MARCH,2024

(The previous period figures have been regrouped/reclassified, presentation wherever necessary to conform to the current )

Note : 2 Sharc INR in 000's

Sr. No Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

1

2

AUTHORIZED CAPITAT

1,95,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

25,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

ISSUED. SUESCRIBED & PAID UP CAPITAT

To the Subscribers of the Memorandum
4994000 Equity Shores Of Rs.70 Eoch

9988000 Equity Bonus Shores oI Rs.70 Each

1,95,000

25,000

1,95,000

25,000

2,20,000 2,20,O00

49,940

99,880

49,940

99,880

rotal (Rs) r,49,820 t,49,820

Outstanding as on April 1, 2023

issued During the Year - Right lssue

lssued During the Year - Bonus

Outstanding as on March 3L,2024

r

3

4

5

o

7

8

9

10

11

!2

t5

a)

ao

t7
18

19

20

Mahesh Navalchand Shah

Dharmesh Navalchand Shah

Deep Hitesh Lakhani

Rajendra Navalchand Shah

Hitesh Himatlal Lakhani HUF

PJS Securities LLP

Vikram Navalchand Shah HUF

Mahesh Navalchand Shah HUF

Sejal Dharmesh Shah

r1,44,860

10,03,938

9,88,938

9,88,938

9,88,938

9,64,980

7,18,248

5,57,300

6,36,000

5,34,s00

6,11,880

5,47,s00

2,79,000

2,19,000

1,86,000

1;85,000

1,80,000

t,71,o00

1,65,000

1,44,00Q

77,44,860

10,03,938

9,88,938

9,88,938

9,88,938

9,54,980

7,L8,248

5,57,300

6,35,000

5,34,500

6,11,880

5,47,500

2,L9,000

2,19,000

1,85,000

1,86,000

1,80,000

t,71,000

1,55,000

7.64

6.70

6.60

6.60

6.60

6.44

4.79

4.39

4.25

4.24

4.08

r.46

t.24

L.24

t.20

1.10

0.96

Note:3 Reserue &

Sr. No Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

I

2

Securities Premium

Balance brought forward from previous year

Less: Bonus lssue

Surplus (Profit & Loss Account)

Balance brought forward from previous year

Add : Transfer From P & LA/c F

Add: Profit for the period

Less: Short Provision For Tax ( Previous Year.)

2,59,706 2.59.706

2,59,706 3,s9,s86

(99,880

9,75,926 5,49,144

5,53,837 ? 4q c4q

1 aa qaq

4,22,089

t2,35,632 8,08,8s0

. L2,35,632

Note:

The corrying amount of the osset hos been deprecioted over the remoining useful life of asset os per Schedule il of the

componies Act, 2073 ond after retoining the residuol volue it is recognrsea rn ttre openr'pgtrli,il!4rffiQg ined eornings
/. {L\ t 't; c}' r \}rwhere the remoining useful life of an osset is'NlL'.



NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,2O24

(The previous period figures have been regrouped/reclasslfled, wherever necessary

to conform to the current presentation)

Sr. No. Particulars FY 2021-24 FY 2022-23

1

2

3

4

Manba Finance limited

Total Holdings & Finvest Pw Ltd

Rikhav Securities Limited

Tata Capital Seruices Private Limited

50,000

3,49,088 74,5r7

It97
rotal (Rs) 1 qq n70

Note,6 frdde

Si No. Particulars FY 2023-24 FY2022-23

1

2

3

4

5

6

Trade Payables

Trade Payables (Client Margin)

Trade Payables for expenses

Gift Power Company Limited

Turnover Charges Payable

Volupia Developers h^ LTD,

29,227

LO,74,475

4,473

7,O2,95r

18,311

9

Total [Rsl 10,s2,17s 7,2r,494

Payables 31st March 2024

Sr. No, Particulars
Outstanding for followlnt periods from due date of payment

Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 yea6 2-3 vears More than 3 years

(i) MsME

(ii) Others

(iii) Disputed dues- MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - others

ro,52,775

u

1o,52,775

Total LO,52,175

6.2 - Trcde Payables ageing schedule: As at 31st March 2023

sr. No, Particulars
Outstandlng for following periods from due dat€ of payment

Total
Less than I year 1-2 vears 2:3 years More than 3 yea6

(i) MsME

(ii) Others

(iii) Disputed dues- MSME

{ivl Disouted dues - others

7,2r,494 7,27,494

Total 1,2t,494 7,2L,494

Note : 7 other current Llobilities

5r. No. Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

I
2

3

4

5

7

8

9

10

11

t2
t4
15

Audit Fees Payable

Profession Tax Payable

TCS Payable

TDs Payable

GST Payable

P&L on unexpired contract

TOC Exchange payable

Stamp d.uty payable

Advance deposits

Security Deposit

lobbing Deposit

salary payable

Cther Expense payable

150

!42

2,787

59

872

3,086

31

135

a4

5,460

L,577

46,O44

7,432

fdo

91

Total (Rs) 7,858 54,949

Note : 8 Short Term Prcvisions

Sr. No. Partlculars \ FY2023-24 FY 2022-2t
lncome I ax Drovtston 84,745 47,L66

Total (Rs) 88.745 41,156
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Note : 70 Non Cufient lnvestments

Note: The above investment in wholly Owned Subsidiary company is carried at cost.

During the Current Financial Year the above Investments are carried at cost.

Trade Receivables

5r. No. Particulars Ft2023-24 Ff2022-2t
nvestment ln Shares:

nvestment ln Rikhav lnsurance Broker Pvt l-td

1,01,685 Equity Shares @Rs.109/- F.V.- Rs.10/-)

\ssociates Rikhav Insurance Broker Private Limited

nvestments in Shares & Securities

Fair Market Value as on 31.03.2024 - Rs L4f,46,76,287/-l

0

L3,r7,927

11,083

(4,691

9,70,075

lotal {Rs) t3,LL,927 9.76.467

Note : Term Loans & Advances

Sr. No. Partlculars Ft202t-24 FY2022-25

1

2

vlargin & Deposits to Stock Exchanges etc.

)ther Deposit

:ixed Deoosits

3,2734r
8,953

70,28,575

23,t92
9,OO7

rotal (Rs) 13,64,909 72,799

Note : 72 Trcde Receivdbles

Sr, No, Partlculars ttt 202c-24 FY2022-23

2

)utstanding for Less than Six months:

a)Unsecured, Considered Good :

)thers {More than 3 Monthsl:

)Unsecured, considered Good :

)) India International Exchange (lFSC} ltd
J Stock HoldinR Securities IFSC Limited

36,497

6

5,4L9

48,380

1,769

5,777

4t,922 55,925

Sr. No. Partlculars
Outstanding for tollowing periods from due date of payment

Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 veats 2-3 years More than 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -considered good

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -considered doubtful

(iii) Disputed trade receivables considered good

(iv) Disputed trade receivables considered doubtful

41,922 47,922

Total 4r,922 4'.,922

L2.2- schedule as at 3lst March 2023

SL No. Partlculars
Outstandlng for following periods from due date of payment

Total
Less than 1 yeat 1:2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 y€ars

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -considered good

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -considered doubtful

(iii) Disputed trade receivables considered good

(iv) Disputed trade receivables considered doubtful

55,926 55,926

Total 55,926 s5,926

{'s{9
>[ -'ip

1&-+



Note :75 Other Cuftent AsseB
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Note: 76 Revenue INR in 000's

Sr. No. Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

L2

13

Brokerage & Commission

Short term capital Gain

Long term capital Gain / (Loss)

Short term loss on sale of unlisted equity shares

Market maker fees received

LEIPS Income received

Dividend on Shares

Speculation Profit

Software license fees received

Revenue From Demat Operations

Share trading Activity
Transaction Charges

Profit / (Loss) from F&O and Currency Trades

79,396

5,06,377

13,110

(8,911)

7,t75

5,446

640

3,L79

(123)

(0)

4,27,939

81,823

3,45,772

(9,0421

4,126

99

5,589

21,537

2,655

(2,813)

753

44.I78
Total {Rs} LO,34,229 4,94,677

Note : 77 Other lncome

Sr. No. Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

1

2

Other Receipts

Interest Recd on FDR

Interest Received (Others)

I

7\,068
699

36,615

13,550
Total (Rs) 7t,767 50,175

Note: 78

Sr; No. Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

1

2

3

4

Salaries, Bonus, PF & ESIC

Director Remuneration

Staff welfare

P. F. Contribution

1,68,983

1,9s0

608

254

85,883

150

7

147
rotal (Rs) 1,7t,795 86,197

Note : 79 Financiol Cost

Sr. No Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

1

2

3

Bank Charges & Bank Interest

Bank Gurantee expenses

Interest Expenses

10,058

L4,439

4,932

5,833

72,102

18,083
Total (Rs) 29A39 36,018

ffi*
ir
,px



Note:20 & Amonised Cost

Sr. No Particulars FY 2O23:24 FY 2022-23

L Depreciation 6,048 4,887

Total (Rs) 6,048 4,887

Note : 27 Other Administrative

Sr. No Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

t2
13

L4

15

16

tt
18

19

20

2L

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

Administrative charges

Amenities Charges

Amortisation of Lease Premium

Annual Maintainance Charges

Auditors Remuneration

Brokerage & Commission

Turnover charges

Business & Promotion

Computer Expenses

Connectivity Charges

Conveyance Expenses

Courier & Postage Expenses

Donation

CSR Expenses

Electricity Expenses

Exchange Expenses

Expenses on Shares Trading

Insurance Expenses

Office Maintainance

Membership fees

Petrol & Diesel Expenses

Printing & Stationery

Prior Period Expense

Professional Fees

Rates, Taxes & Penalties

Refreshment Expenses

Rent Expenses

Repairs & Maintainance

Share Trading Activity

Software Expenses

5uniiry Expenses

Telephone Expenses

Travelling Expenses

Water Charges

Written Off

400

600

52

46,337

150

20,784

2,303

6t4
2,296

3,597

1,87\
63

313

3,941

2,348

673

L,t7,27t
1,193

1,500

673

249

t,57,880

t0,269

526

5,500

359

100

52

193

915

272

9

1,L76

q2

600

52

8,948
135

L0,397

s,927

1,399

1,321

3,592

49

2,572

t,570
3,949

55,656

250

t70

t64
127

LJ

62,491

1,722

440

9,17L

803

296

30

234

294

197

85

fotal (Rs) 3,84,472 r,72,698

Note : 22 Extra Ordinary ltems

5r. No Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

1 Foreign Exchange Gain / Loss 42 392
rotal (Rs) 42 392

6P
3!
v,\


